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Corporate Profile 2B

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 3868) was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 2 October 2007. We are the largest decorative base paper manufacturer in the PRC,
specialising in the production of decorative base paper products and printing paper product.

We developed and marketed more than 80 types of decorative base paper products under our own brand name with
different specifications which are customised for various industrial and customers’ needs. Our decorative base paper
products, being intermediate products, are commonly used as decorative layer to furnish the surface of laminated
board, a decorative material which has wide applications in interior decoration of buildings and transportation vehicles,
processed products such as fortified wooden floorboard, furniture and composite office and household wares. Our
printing paper product is mainly used for photocopying and office printing.

We currently own and operate 13 highly automated paper Production lines nos. 1 to 13 in Zouping County, Binzhou
City, Shandong Province, the PRC with an aggregate designed annual production capacity of approximately 380,000
tonnes.

We have an experienced sales and marketing team serving 6 designated sales regions in the PRC and have over 130
customers covering 13 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities in the PRC.
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STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 3868

WEBSITES
WWW.gxpaper.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/gxpaper/

INVESTOR AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT
iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

2011 FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of 2010 Annual Results:
30 March 2011

2011 Annual General Meeting:
18 May 2011

Announcement of 2011 Interim Results:
August 2011 (tentative date)

2010 Final Dividend and Special Dividend

B A0 4R
EEMAERZFBERAT : 3868

ik
WWW.gxpaper.com
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/gxpaper/
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Final Dividend :© HK8.633 cents (in scrip form with a FRCREARRE.  © 8.633BILERBAKRRET
Per Share cash option) = - AR BWEIRS)
Special Cash : HK3 cents FRERNES - 3731
Dividend 9=}
Per Share
Period of Book © 12 May 2011 to 18 May 2011 HiLBAFRME | —Z——FRA+-H
Closure (both days inclusive) 2-FT——FHA+NH
(BEEREWA)
Dividend Payment : 16 June 2011 IRESEE 0 —ZE——FXA+NH
Date
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“associate(s)”

[BZEA

“Articles of Association”
[#EE=T24R) ]

“Board”

=30

“BVI”
[RBRERES ]

“CG Code”
[fEE AP

“Code Provision(s)
[=F A&

“Company” or “QX Paper”
NS EA R =i

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]

“Director(s)

[E%]

“Group”, “QX Group”, “we",

“our” or “us”

[REE | FHEEXE]

“HK$”
(%]

“Hong Kong”
[&%]

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LWmARAME T 2%

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to
time)
RAREBERRMA(BARKIERT)

the board of Directors

52

the British Virgin Islands
RBRULRS

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules
ERAIER 14 FE 2K EBERER TR

the code provision(s) under the CG Code
BN EE AT ZSFRIEX

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EREZBRERAAE  —EEREHSTMKIZERAAE - AE
BTG PREE X T EIR =

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWmARAME T2 #%E

director(s) of the Company

RABES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RAR R EME QA

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT EBEEEEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI TR R
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Listing Rules”
[ Bz Al

“Model Code”

2 =ral]

“PRC”
[ Bl

“printing paper”
[ ED | AR 4% |

“Prospectus”

[ B =L ]

“QX Securities Dealing Code”

[B2EHEETA

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
[ 7855 K HAE 11 )

“Shandong QX"
[UEREE

“sq.m.”

[F73K]

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(B2 preg o E AR B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ERAER 10 B2 EMARERETERR S ZRETH)D

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual
report, shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REARANE  HAFERHE - FEESSE - FERRFFITHRE

A
==

a kind of paper commonly used for photocopying and office printing

—RBEREANZE R AZENR 2 45K

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 September 2007
ARFBRHAR-_ZZLFNATLRAZHBKRER

a securities dealing code adopted by the Company on 8 September

2007 (as amended from time to time) on no less exacting terms than

the Model Code

KRR ZZEZLFNANBERZC(EFEETADETRKEET)
1%§KTFT¥ EFRI R

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - PEIZEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BREDE 571 ZE B H R AE %G

Shandong Qunxing Paper Limited*, a limited liability company
established in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

IWRHERXEBRAF  —MRFBEKIZBERAA  WRAAAZ
2EMBAR

square metre

Fok
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 PR

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[EZRE]

“tonne”

[

“op”
[% ]

*  for identification purpose only

EHEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMAERHAARANE

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR LEWRAMET 2 RE

a metric tonne, equivalent to 1,000 kilograms
— AW - HER 1,000 2T

per cent.
Aok
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
s3Ik

"decorative base .
"laminated board”

paper” 5
o 85 AT Jos 2ad

“specialty paper”

[ EAR

a kind of specialty a board product comprising  a kind of paper commonly a kind of paper with unique
paper which is used as a plurality of adjacent sheets used for photocopying and  properties which is suitable
a decorative layer to be of wooden or synthetic printing for special purposes and
impregnated with various materials and decorative —BERANTIR is not considered to be one
wooden or synthetic base paper, laid onto ENff 2 4K 5 of the standard papers by
materials to form laminated each other by an adhesive paper manufacturing
board bonding material positioned industry
—TESTELR - FYERMIRE  in between to form a —REEBEFEmEARER
WEREARSEKYEE  laminate Rz ok - EEREFRT
BEK AR EEAEREES . N eae BRMEERR 2 —

B0 Ko 25 o JR AR AR 2 R

REm - AR IEWE AS YR

B ER

STRUCTURE DIAGRAM OF LAMINATED BOARD
AERZEBE

==
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Durable overlay

ARE

Decorative base paper
High-density fiberboard
Stabilizing layer

BERE



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
AR¥FT AREFT HEp
Operating Results FES—F 31
Turnover BER 2,058,916 1,530,321 +34.5%
Profit from operations g A 455,973 375,862 +21.3%
Profit before taxation R 5 A ) 455,973 371,694 +22.7%
Profit attributable to equity
shareholders T % AR R FE (8 ) 397,506 324,087 +22.7%
Per Share Data SREE
Basic earnings per share FREXREF
(RMB cents) (ARED) 38 31 +22.6%
Dividend per share BRRERE
(HK cents) GBI 11.633 10.680 +8.9%
— Final dividend — KRR 8.633 7.403
— Interim dividend — R HIRE — 3.277
— Special Cash dividend — BRI e E 3.000 —
Financial Position B AR
Total assets BEBE 2,957,192 2,530,525 +16.7%
Cash and cash equivalents He MASEEY 447,763 682,764 -34.4%
Total liabilities BERE 109,748 78,216 +40.3%
Total equity EmME 2,847,444 2,452,309 +16.1%
Financial Ratios Btigth =
Gross profit margin FEFI= 25.2% 27.8% -2.6% pts
ERa
Net profit margin Fom Al R 19.3% 21.2% -1.9% pts
B
Return on assets B ERWwE 13.4% 12.8% +0.6% pts
ERa
Return on equity 1 %5 [B] 3 5 14.0% 13.2% +0.8% pts
EFak
Current ratio BN = 5.5 10.1 -4.6 times &
Quick ratio REpLL =R 5.1 9.7 -4.6 times f&
Gearing ratio BEBELX 0% 0% Nil
4

AN
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

Dr. ZHU Yu Guo
AEEBEL
Chairman EE

10

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited ZE &%= RERAT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of QX Paper, | am pleased to present
to you the annual results of QX Group for the year ended 31
December 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Thanks to the collective efforts of governments around the
world to tackle the financial crisis, the global economy has
been making a notable recovery. Nonetheless, with the
sovereign debt crisis in Europe still lingering, and commodity
and property prices driven up by the second round of US$600
billion quantitative easing launched by the US government,
the risk of inflation has gradually heightened in Asia. In 2010,
the Chinese government launched a multitude of measures in
a bid to cool down the property market, the stock market and
the capital asset market. These measures successfully enabled
China to dodge the debt crisis in Europe, avoid sliding into
double-dip recession and ward off the inflow of hot money.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross
domestic product (“GDP"”) reached RMB39.8 trillion in 2010,
up 10.3% from 2009 and outpacing the 9.2% growth rate
recorded in 2009. All these reflected the steady economic
growth, sustained rising living standard and accelerating
urbanisation in China for the past year.

T B

AANERRBEEAENESS  MARSURREBFHESE
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Although the central government continued to step up efforts
to curb the overheating of the mainland property market,
the adjustment in sales volume was only temporary and the
market remains active on the whole, indicating the demand-
driven nature of the PRC property market, particularly in
second- and third-tier cities where huge demand was seen.
The Group delivered an excellent performance marked by
continuous growth momentum, thanks to accelerating
urbanisation in second- and third-tier cities, the construction
of social security housing, rising demand for housing
decoration materials and our strategy to boost sales of high-
end products in accordance with market demand.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
a turnover of RMB2,058,916,000, up 34.5% year-on-year.
Profits for the year reached RMB397,506,000, representing a
22.7% increase from the same period last year. Earnings per
share were RMB38 cents (2009: RMB31 cents).

STRONG SALES GROWTH

During the year, both the selling price and sales volume of
the Group’s products increased. Average product price of
decorative base paper products was up 6.3% year-on-year,
mainly due to a surge in the cost of raw materials that led
to adjustments to product prices. The total sales volume
for decorative base paper products also went up by 31.4%,
indicating an improvement in the production capacity as
well as market demand for premium decorative base paper.
Production lines nos. 12 and 13 were launched in the October
of 2010 and the effects of their economies of scale have not
been reflected. As a result, the Group’s gross profit margin
for the year dropped from 27.8% in 2009 to 25.2%, which
was still at a healthy level.

AP ARTREETBRZ HEFETT
B AMBBHZRXZERBRETEZH
B AMTEEMERDART LR  RIR
B ARMETENANERESFKIED
LHER- =ZBUTHEEZTRKERRY -
RER- ZRBETHT CERFERE -
REFEERZ  ENHEEREVHZE
Ko MEAREBEEETSEEEHFENSE
EmZBEELD  SAREZBRBEBRR
BF  BFIERZEHE -

HE-_Z-TF+-_A=Z+—HLEFE XK
SEEEHEAEARY2,058916,0007T
REWRR3A5% FEEFENARE
397,506,000 7T * ¥ A F [F BR 38 0 22.7% ©
BRENBAREISH(ZZEZTAE : AR
#315) o

HEHREY

FRN FAEEERHEEBEEA  RHAHRMA
EREMFHEERFLA63% =2
EERERMEIRA EAMASHEREE : 24
RRERZBEEENIEE3.4% KK
EfRZIRANURTISEHSEEMRAT KIZ
e ARENREFIBREESEN _T—F
FHANPERIRE  RREHANBEERE
e MEAFE2F  NEEZEMNEH-Z
TNF227.8% NFHE252%  BIIARER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

EXPANSION OF PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The Group’s construction of Production lines nos. 12 and 13
were completed smoothly in August 2010 and commenced
commercial production in October 2010. Each production line
has an annual production capacity of approximately 30,000
tonnes, pushing up the Group’s aggregate designed annual
production capacity to about 380,000 tonnes, comprising
approximately 330,000 tonnes of decorative base paper
products and approximately 50,000 tonnes of printing paper
product.

The Group launched the reconstruction of Production lines nos.
1 and 2 in September 2010 and completion is scheduled for the
fourth quarter of 2011. The expansion of production capacity
mainly involves premium decorative base paper products that
have a higher profit margin. This will effectively alleviate the
pressure on the gross profit margin resulting from the surge in
the cost of wood pulp.

SOPHISTICATED DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS

During the period under review, the Group continued to focus
on expanding its business in six designated retail sales regions,
namely Shandong, Sichuan, Guangdong, Beijing, Jiangsu and
Zhejiang. We boast a sophisticated distribution network and
our clientele are formed by more than 130 customers spanning
across 13 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities in
China.

VERSATILE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

The Group strives to develop widely applicable and quality
decorative base paper. At present, we produce and retail over
80 types of products catering to different markets. Our products
are suitable for a broad range of applications from furniture
and home and office products to stadiums, community halls,
exhibition centres, as well as interior decoration of vehicles and
aircraft. QX Group will continue to enhance sales of high-end
decorative paper base products to increase its profits.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited £ 2= RAER AT
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
EERES

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibilities and environmental protection has always been
one of our first priorities. The premium wood pulp that we use
to produce decorative base paper products causes almost zero
environmental pollution during the production process and is in
line with the national policies on environmental protection.

The Group is also highly concerned about the impact of its
operations on the environment. At present, we have two
waste water treatment systems with a total annual processing
capacity of approximately 5,350,000 cubic metres. The Group
has upgraded and improved one of the systems with an annual
processing capacity of approximately 1,700,000 cubic metres
in October 2010 to enhance its sewage standard. The other
system has an annual processing capacity of approximately
3,650,000 cubic metres. Waste water after treatment is reused
for irrigation at the Group’s production base in Shandong, the
PRC.

OUTLOOK

Under the “12th Five-Year” plan launched by the central
government in October 2010, construction of more social
security housing has become one of the key policies of the
State. It is anticipated that the number of newly constructed
social security housing in 2011 will shoot up by 70% compared
with 2010, pushing up the market demand for decorative base
paper products. In view of the Group’s high-end technology
in producing decorative base paper products and its solid
foundation, the Board believes the Group’s business will

continue to grow steadily in 2011.

To complement its business growth, the Group made an open
offer in January 2011, raising approximately HK$345 million in
total. On 14 January 2011, the Group issued to an independent
party unlisted warrants of the Company in an amount of
approximately HK$10 million. Assuming the full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the warrants by the subscriber,
the Company will be able to raise about HK$609 million. These
financing activities will further enhance the Group's financial
position and reinforce its ability to capture market opportunities
in the decorative paper base industry of China.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

We will continue to expand our production capacity and further
strengthen our competitiveness by improving and upgrading our
production facilities. Parallel to consolidating our leading market
position and client base in the mainland market covered by our
sales network, we will make an effort to boost the sales and
market share of high-end products with a higher gross profit
margin and implement rigorous cost-control measures. The QX
Group is keeping a lookout for suitable and potentially lucrative
acquisition targets in the decorative base paper industry of
China and related areas, with a view to generating greater
returns for our shareholders in the long run. The Group will
make an announcement in accordance with the requirements of

the Listing Rules when such opportunities are realised.

é, l

ZHU Yu Guo kR EH
Chairman F/Z

Shandong, the PRC, 30 March 2011
FRELR —FE——F=ZA=+H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN W& D

The following discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
of our Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2010
and the accompanying notes set out in this annual report.

OVERVIEW

Our Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of decorative base paper products and printing paper product.
As ranked by China Paper Association, our Group is the largest
decorative base paper manufacturer in terms of the actual
annual production capacity in the PRC since 2005.

Thanks to the collective efforts of governments around the
world to tackle the financial crisis, the global economy has been
making a notable recovery. Our Group continued to achieve
growth in the business during the year under review. We are
continuing to expand the production capacity and improve the
technical know-how in the provision of quality decorative base
paper products to our customers. Our turnover increased by
approximately 34.5% from RMB1,530.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to RMB2,058.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The increase in turnover was mainly
attributable to the increase in our Group’s production capacity
as a result of the commercial operation of Production lines nos.
10 to 11 and nos. 12 to 13 since December 2009 and October
2010, respectively.

During the year under review, our profit before taxation
increased by approximately 22.7% from RMB371.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2009 to RMB456.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

Starting from 2009, our profit from operation in the PRC
is subject to a reduced PRC income tax rate of 12.5% for
three years till 31 December 2011. Our taxation for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 were RMB47.6 million
and RMB58.5 million respectively. As a result, our net profit
attributable to the shareholders increased by approximately
22.7% from RMB324.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2009 to RMB397.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2010.

The basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010 were RMB31 cents and RMB38 cents,
respectively. The increase in the basic earnings per share for
the year under review was mainly attributable to the increase in
turnover as discussed above.
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The expansion of production capacity in recent years

Our production capacity has been expanded significantly in
recent years through establishing new production facilities as
well as re-engineering and modifying the existing production
facilities with a view to improving the production efficiency.
With the highly automated production facilities at our
production base located in Zouping County, Binzhou City,
Shandong Province, the PRC, we are able to provide one-stop
service for a wide range of decorative base paper products.

Production lines nos. 1 to 6

Since the commencement of our operation, we have
successfully increased our designed annual production capacity
from approximately 10,000 tonnes in 1999 to approximately
170,000 tonnes in 2006. As of 31 December 2006, we owned
and operated six highly automated Production lines nos. 1 to
6, with an aggregate designed annual production capacity of
approximately 170,000 tonnes.

Production line no. 7

In order to tap the continuously growing demand for decorative
base paper products in the PRC market, we commenced the
construction of various production lines since 2007. In May
2007, we commenced the construction of Production line no.
7 with a designed annual production capacity of approximately
30,000 tonnes. The construction was completed in December
2007 and the commercial production commenced in March
2008.

Production lines nos. 8 to 11

In February 2008, we commenced the construction of
Production lines nos. 8 and 9 with a designated annual
production capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes each. The
construction was completed in late 2008 and the commercial
production commenced in March 2009 and April 2009
respectively.

In September 2008, the construction of Production lines nos.
10 and 11 commenced. Each of the production lines has a
designated annual production capacity of approximately 30,000
tonnes. The construction was completed in September 2009
and commercial production commenced in December 2009.
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Production lines nos. 12 and 13

In August 2009, we commenced the construction of Production
lines nos. 12 and 13 with a designated annual production
capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes each. The construction
of these production lines was completed in August 2010 and
commercial production commenced in October 2010.

The following table sets forth our designed annual production
capacity as of the dates indicated.

FBI2REFIZFELEER

RIZEZNENR  AEERMAFI12RF13REE
FERTIRE  BIEREIFESY A430,000H ¢
WEERZERTIERRN_ZE—FTFNALRT - IR

TE-TFETAMREELE -

TERBIIFIREAAEE 2 R FERL

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(in tonnes) ({7 : MA) —EERFE ZETtF ZITTN\F ZTThEFE ZB-ZF
Production line no(s). FEARAR R
1,2, 3,4 (note 1) 12-3-4(Wit1) 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000
5,6 56 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
7 7 — 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
8,9 89 — — 60,000 60,000 60,000
10, 11 10~ 11 — — — 60,000 60,000
12,13 1213 — — — — 60,000
170,000 200,000 260,000 320,000 380,000
Notes: Bat
1. Rebuilding of Production lines no. 1 and 2 commenced in 1. BIRE2HEEGN T —ZFENARMAER -

September 2010 and is estimated to be complete by the third
quarter of 2011. Upon the completion of rebuilding construction,
the aggregate designed annual production capacity of Production
lines no. 1 and 2 will be increased by 30,000 tonnes from
approximately 30,000 tonnes to approximately 60,000 tonnes.

Subsequent to the commencement of the commercial operation
of Production lines nos. 12 and 13 in October 2010, the
aggregate designed annual production capacity of our Group
as at 31 December 2010 is approximately 380,000 tonnes,
representing an increase by approximately 18.8% from
approximately 320,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2009.

e A

BEE %

%L.

% 5T EE 8240 4 380,000 M -
=+—H2#)320,000Mf -F+4718.8% o

BN T —FE=FRIT - RERITREx
Bifg - B RB2MAEERZ AR
30,000 FZ3# /i1 30,000 M % 47 60,000 I
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Our Group believes that the increase in the production capacity
in recent years has strengthened our leading market position
and enhanced our competitiveness in the market. Our Group’s
plan to keep expanding the production capacity was approved
by ILUER%EE T % A= (Shandong Province Light Industry
Council*) in January 2007 as one of the approved projects
for paper manufacturing industry in the PRC under AR T
¥+ —FAMEDWTHE (The Outline for Development of the
Laminated Board Industry under the Eleventh Five Year Plan*).
We have already completed the construction of Production
lines nos. 7 to 13 since our listing and the commercial
operation of these production lines was commenced since
March 2008. Currently, the two old Production lines nos. 1
and 2, with aggregate designed annual production capacity
of approximately 30,000 tonnes, are under rebuilding and
the rebuilding construction is estimated to complete by third
quarter of 2011.

AEBERE OFEREZEACE—SEELEE
ZTIBEBMAN - BRAAKEZTISREN - A%
EREFEIAR-ZEEF—ABILEEE TR
NERE  RAAERIE T —AREDTRER
PEEREESERE 2 — - RETES  BMER
KETEEIBRAEFLERIE TE-_FTN
FoARERRAPELE BN MEEFERSF
E £#4930,000Mi 2 F 1 REB2FREEGENREZR
EHERIBR T ——FE=FRT -

The increase of equipment utilisation rate REEHEZEM
The following table illustrates information on the utilisation TRETALABFAEESEEGZERE  BR
rates and actual and planned hours of operation for the REEIBE N\ 2 &R -
production lines over the past years.
Year ended 31 December
HEtZR=t-RLEE
2006 00 2008 2009 010
- s RE s -8
Planned ~ Equipment

Acualhous  Pamedhous — Eoupment  Adualhours Plmnedhous  Equioment Actudlbous Plmedhours  foupment  Acualhous  Pamedhous  Equipment  Acuelhows  howsof  Utiisaton
Producton e o ofopeetin  ofoperson” Utafonate”  ofoperaonof cpeetin” Uiction e”  of cpeaton ofoperaon” Utligfonrae”  ofoperefon ofopeaton” Ufaton " of oeration operaton” rate”
L PheEs ABRE0E' GRRRY EREER SRR RERRY ERMElS niEN DESRY mREER MBEEY ReR BERME MBERMR"  BpeRe
1 L5551 TV L/ R S RO 1 S S ¢ S 1 J 11 et
1 6,034 1176 764 1608 15 9.1% §0n 8,208 983% 8015 8,208 97.6% 90 8,208 9.1%
3 14 1776 938% 184 8040 93% 8,003 8,208 975% 19m 8,208 97.1% 130 8,208 %.7%
4 JAL) 1176 99.5% 181 8040 919% 1900 8,040 985% IRl 8040 98.5% 9 8040 98.5%
5 503" 58 8.3% 190 8040 985% 8097 §.08 Bk 8,108 8,08 988% 8010 §208 97.6%
§ 547 58 939% 1968 8040 9.1% 8084 §.08 B5% 8091 8,08 986% 808 §208 91.7%
1 6%0° 11 97.0% 8091 8,208 98.6% §145 §208 9.2%
§ 636" 65 915% 8059 §208 98.2%
§ 507 616" 974% 8,026 8,208 9.8%
0 w A S 1 N 1
11 W » %.1% 8035 §208 97.9%
1l W a
13 196" 196" 96.8%
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Notes:

(1) Planned hours of operation takes into account, among other
things, planned maintenance shutdowns and shutdowns for
equipment optimisation.

(2) Equipment utilisation rates represent the actual hours of operation
as a percentage of the planned hours of operation.

(3) Commercial operation of Production lines nos. 5 and 6
commenced in April 2006.

(4) The decrease in the equipment utilisation rate is due to the re-
engineering works carried out in this production line during the
years.

(5) Commercial operation of Production line no. 7 commenced in
March 2008.

(6) Commercial operation of Production lines nos. 8 and 9
commenced in March 2009 and April 2009, respectively.

(7) Commercial operation of Production lines nos. 10 and 11
commenced in December 2009.

(8) Commercial operation of Production lines nos. 12 and 13
commenced in October 2010.

9) Production line no. 1 suspended operation since four quarter of
2010.

(10) The average age of the machinery and equipment is approximately
4.0 years.

The production lines normally operate on a continuous basis,
subject to temporary stoppages, as and when necessary, for
the purposes of machine cleaning, recalibration for different
product specifications as well as regular inspection and
maintenance work which generally lasts for, in aggregate, one
to two days each month and an annual maintenance which lasts
for about a week. As increases or decreases in the equipment
utilisation rates will have an impact on the product volume and,
thus, can have a significant effect on the unit costs and gross
profit margins, we therefore plan the production schedules
carefully so as to minimise the shutdown time required for
making adjustments to the paper making machines for product
and specification changes.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

Turnover increased by approximately 34.5% from RMB1,530.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to RMB2,058.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The increase in
turnover during the year ended 31 December 2010 was mainly
attributable to the combined effects of (i) the increase in overall
sales volumes by approximately 21.2% from 146,506 tonnes in
2009 to 177,567 tonnes in 2010, out of which sales volumes of
the decorative base paper products increased by approximately
31.4% from 107,667 tonnes for the year ended 31 December
2009 to 141,429 tonnes for the year ended 31 December
2010; and (ii) the increase in the average selling prices of the
decorative base paper products and printing paper product by
approximately 6.3% from RMB12,142 per tonne in 2009 to
RMB12,907 per tonne in 2010 and approximately 12.5% from
RMB5,744 per tonne in 2009 to RMB6,460 per tonne in 2010,
respectively.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales represents the production costs of goods sold
during the year. Our production costs comprise costs of raw
materials, direct labour costs and manufacturing overheads,
which include depreciation charges, utility expenses,
consumables, repairs and maintenance and other overhead
related expenses.

Cost of sales increased by approximately 39.2% from
RMB1,105.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to
RMB1,539.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2010.
The increase in cost of sales was primarily due to the combined
effects of (i) an increase in the aggregate raw material costs,
which are the major component of our cost of sales, as a result
of the increased sales volume, (ii) an increase in purchasing
costs of wood pulp and titanium dioxide powder, our
principal raw materials for production during the year ended
31 December 2010 (as discussed below), (iii) an increase in
production overheads, such as electricity and steam expenses, in
line with the increase in production volume; and (iv) an increase
in depreciation expenses due to the commercial production of
Production lines nos. 10 to 11 and 12 to 13 since December
2009 and October 2010, respectively.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited £ 2= RAER AT
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Principal raw materials

Our results of operations are subject to price fluctuations of
raw materials used in the production process. The principal
raw materials for our production are wood pulp and titanium
dioxide powder.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
2010, the purchase of wood pulp amounted to approximately
RMB405.9 million and RMB603.0 million, respectively,
representing approximately 36.7% and 39.2% of the total
cost of sales for the respective years. The increase is due to the
combined effect of (i) an increase in usage of wood pulp, in
line with the increased sales volume; and (ii) an increase in the
average purchase price (value added tax inclusive) of wood pulp
by approximately 22.4% from approximately RMB5,104 per
tonne in 2009 to RMB6,247 per tonne in 2010.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2009 and
2010, the purchase of titanium dioxide powder amounted
to approximately RMB314.3 million and RMB418.4 million,
respectively, representing approximately 28.4% and 27.2%
of the total cost of sales for the respective years. The increase
is mainly due to the combined effect of (i) an increase in the
usage of titanium dioxide as a result of the increased sales
volume in decorative base paper products; and (ii) an increase
in the average purchase price (value added tax inclusive) of
titanium dioxide by approximately 5.5% from approximately
RMB12,747 per tonne in 2009 to RMB13,451 per tonne in
2010.

Utilities and steam expenses

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010, our
electricity and steam expenses increased by approximately
26.7% from RMB139.4 million in 2009 to RMB176.6 million
in 2010, which was mainly due to the increase in production
volume as a result of the commercial operation of Production
lines nos. 10 to 11 and 12 to 13 since December 2009 and
October 2010, respectively. The electricity and steam expenses
accounted for approximately 12.6% and 11.5% of the total
cost of sales for the respective years.

Depreciation charges

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010, our
depreciation charges included in cost of sales increased
by approximately 62.5% from RMB91.7 million in 2009 to
RMB149.0 million in 2010, mainly due to the commercial
operation of Production lines nos. 10 to 11 and 12 to 13 since
December 2009 and October 2010, respectively.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of our Group increased by approximately 22.4%
from RMB424.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2009
to RMB519.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2010,
while the gross profit margin decreased from approximately
27.8% for the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately
25.2% for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of each
category of the products for the two years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010:

EFREFZ

AEBZENRBEE_ZETNF+_A=+—H
IFEE 2 AR® 424,800,000 TTIE N4 22.4% &
HE_ZT-ZTE+-_A=1+—RHUIFEZARKE
519,800,000 T ' AN EMEHEE-_ZTZTNF
T A=+ —HLEFEN278% BRI EHEZ
—EF+ A=+ —BLFEL252% -

TRENBE_ZTNAFR-_ZT-FFF+_A
=t- EIJJ:FWIiE%E:%iEE'JZ%?’F‘@ :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-BLHEE

2010 2009
Products Em —E-ZF —EENEF
Decorative base paper products HEFRAER
— Premium coloured decorative base paper — =iEA R RAE D 33.2% 37.7%
— Premium white decorative base paper — SEEGKMEARAE R 24.7% 26.4%
— Ordinary coloured decorative base paper — BB BEMRERE R 25.7% 26.4%
Sub-total NET 26.5% 29.6%
Printing paper product EN Rl P 4K 7= f 15.8% 17.3%

The change in overall gross profit margin of our decorative
base paper products in 2010 was mainly attributable to the
increased depreciation charges under the commercial operation
of Production lines nos. 12 to 13 since October 2010, where
the economies of scales have not been reflected while the
change in gross profit margin of our printing paper products
was mainly attributable to the change in sales mix of printing
paper products in 2010.

Other revenue and other net loss

Other revenue, which represented mainly interest income
earned from the bank deposits and dividend income from listed
securities, decreased by approximately 50.0% from RMB4.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to RMB2.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010. The decrease was
mainly due to the consequence of less cash held on hand upon
the payment of construction costs for production lines and the
persistently low interest rate environment after the wake of
the financial tsunami such that interest income from deposits
decreased by approximately 44.0% from RMB4.0 million in
2009 to RMB2.2 million in 2010.
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In compliance with the financial management and treasury
policies, certain investments were made using uncommitted
funds. For the year ended 31 December 2009, we recorded a
net realised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of RMBO0.1 million whilst no such profit or loss was
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Selling expenses

As at 31 December 2010, our Group had 46 sales and marketing
staff and continued to carry out various promotional activities in
an attempt to solicit new customers in the six designated sales
regions in the PRC. As a result, the selling expenses increased
by approximately 37.5% from RMB19.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to RMB26.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010. As a percentage of turnover, our
selling expenses were maintained at approximately 1.3% for the
two years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010. This was in line
with the existing policy of our Group to allocate approximately
1.0% of the revenue from sales as the annual budget for the
marketing activities.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses consist primarily of administrative
and management staff salaries and benefits, depreciation of
non-production related fixed assets, research and development
costs, and pension contributions.

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 15.9%
from RMB34.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2009
to RMB39.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
increase was mainly due to the recognition of an impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment of RMB4.1 million upon
the rebuilding of Production lines nos. 1 and 2 in 2010.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist primarily of interest expenses on the bank
borrowings. We recorded interest expenses of RMB4.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 while no interest expense
was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2010 since the
bank borrowings were fully repaid in 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBHNWR DM

Income tax

Members of the Group are incorporated in different
jurisdictions, with different taxation requirements.

Shandong QX, our principal operating subsidiary in the PRC,
had been exempted from PRC income tax for the two years
from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2008, followed by a
reduced PRC income tax rate at 12.5% for the remaining three
years from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011 under the
grandfathering treatments of the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC passed on 16 March 2007. As such, our Group is liable
to pay income tax in the PRC for the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010, and is subject to the PRC income tax rate of
12.5% for the respective years.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2009
and 2010 as the Group did not earn assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for either year.

The effective tax rates of our Group for the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2010 was maintained at 12.8%, The
reconciliation between income tax expenses and accounting
profit at the applicable tax rates was set out as follows:

Frig®

REEZKERBRTRELEEBIMAL - M
TRBNEEEER TR RBHRE

mfﬁfjjti A+ BBBAZHREMCEMR
BHEAZREERBRERE  AEERPREZE

DEBENBARILEREA ST F—A—H
EEENF+_A=+— Hmiﬁ%?%%%
FEMER  WER-_ZETAF—A—HZ
—F+ZA=+— H%Tfiﬁ&QS%Zﬁ
BHEHNREMEY ARBE_TSZNAFK
TE-EFFT_A=Z+—BULFE AEEFHE
FREBNATEH  MMEFEHEKRI12.5% 2%
KNP B -

ERAEER _ETNFR-_F-FTFELERR
/,\?v%&ﬁmif/%%‘JH%RZJE%%R/mﬂ WBARE M
FREZEBEBNGSHA RS -

AEBBE_ZTTZNFR_ZT—ZTF+=A
Zt+—BILFEZEBRME ﬂ&ﬁmus% b7
ERAMEFEZAGHA AR 2 RN
™~

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-BLHEE

2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFr

Profit before taxation FR 5 AT A 455,973 371,694
Income tax on profit before taxation, calculated % ABRAF: 7% A A #E (2 i@ A F R

at the tax rates applicable in the respective tax SR B AR FIPTER

jurisdictions concerned 114,729 93,706

Tax effect of tax concession period BB ERARA R E (58,548) (49,040)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B 2 g & 1,857 1,981

Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERBIUA 2 Bl 5o 28 (21 (103)

Under provision in prior year BEFEREBETR 450 —
Tax effect of unused tax loss not recognised for — FLIEERIE B E’Jiﬁﬁﬁu R fE A

deferred tax purposes TIEEE 2 B e — 1,063

Income tax expenses for the year FEMEBRX 58,467 47,607
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFN W& D

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of our
Group as of the date or for the year indicated.

FEFBLER

TRIIAREER TFIFR B MRBREZA L F
BEZETFHHLE -

As of or for the years ended
31 December

R+=A=+—H=

BEZALEE

Note 2010 2009

Htet —E-BF ZETNF
Profitability ratios ERIge ht =
Gross profit margin FEFI= 1 25.2% 27.8%
Net profit margin kM 2R 2 19.3% 21.2%
Return on assets B E R 3 13.4% 12.8%
Return on equity 1 %5 [B] 7 5 4 14.0% 13.2%
Liquidity ratios REBESHLE
Current ratio MEDLE = 5 5.5 10.1
Quick ratio REDL & 6 5.1 9.7
Gearing ratio EEafEl=x 7 0% 0%
Inventory turnover days FERAEXE 8 15 16
Debtors’ turnover days FEU AR FUB B R 8K 9 17 7
Creditors’ turnover days FERTBR AR 10 23 20

Notes:

Gross profit margin is calculated based on the gross profit divided
by turnover and multiplied by 100%.

Net profit margin is calculated based on the profit for the year
divided by turnover and multiplied by 100%.

Return on assets is calculated based on the profit for the year

divided by the total assets at the end of the year and multiplied

Return on equity is calculated based on the profit for the year
divided by capital and reserves at the end of the year and

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets
divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

2.
3.
by 100%.
4.
multiplied by 100%.
5.
6.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the
total current assets and the inventories divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the year.

Bat

EFELAEFIR BT 100% 5t 5 ©
ok L DA R R A2 R DA 100%
& o

A 7 B R AR SRR DG R A A (T

100% 51 &

7 2 [B] 3 2R DA R 4F 208 M BR LA FF R B AN % o 1 O
LA100% 51 & -

MBLEUFRRBEERERNFRRB AR
BERE -

R EAFRADEERELATEZEZHHRIA
FRRBDEELETE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEF W& D

7. Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total bank borrowings
divided by total assets and multiplied by 100%.

8. Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the inventory at
the end of the year divided by the total purchases during the year
and multiplied by the number of days during the year.

9. Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on trade receivables
at the end of the year divided by turnover during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year.

10. Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on trade payables at
the end of the year divided by the total purchases during the year
and multiplied by the number of days during the year.

Current and quick ratio

The current ratio of the Group decreased from 10.1 as at 31
December 2009 to 5.5 as at 31 December 2010 and the quick
ratio of the Group decreased from 9.7 as at 31 December 2009
to 5.1 as at 31 December 2010, respectively, which was mainly
due to the combined effect of i) the settlement of construction
costs for Production lines nos. 10 to 13; and ii) the partial
payment of construction costs for re-building of Production lines
nos. 1 and 2 during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowings and the gearing ratio was 0.0%.

Return on assets

The return on assets increased from 12.8% for the year ended
31 December 2009 to 13.4% for the year ended 31 December
2010. The increase in return on assets for the year ended 31
December 2009 was mainly attributable to the increase in our
turnover arisen from operations (discussed above under the
header “Turnover”).

Return on equity

The return on equity for the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2010 were approximately 13.2% and 14.0% respectively.
The increase in return on equity for the year ended 31
December 2010 was mainly attributable to the increase in
turnover arisen from operations.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited £ 2= RAER AT
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BEREFN W& D

Inventories and the inventory turnover days

Our inventory level increased by approximately 31.1% from
approximately RMB37.3 million as at 31 December 2009 to
approximately RMB49.0 million as at 31 December 2010.
Nonetheless, the inventory turnover days maintained at 16 days
and 15 days for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010,
respectively, which proved that we have effectively implemented
our inventory control policy and measures over the past years.

It is our Group's practice to purchase sufficient amount of
raw materials based on the production schedule and to keep
one week’s inventory of raw materials in storage. For finished
products, it is our Group's practice to keep minimal stock
of finished products in our storage warehouse to satisfy any
customer’s urgent demand. Our Group may also keep reserve
stock of finished products at times when the market demand
for decorative base paper makes it prudent to do so.

Trade receivables and debtors’ turnover days

Our Group normally requires the customers to settle the
invoices by cash on delivery. The granting of credit to customers
is assessed on a case-by-case basis and our Group may generally
grant credit terms of 3 to 30 days on a rolling basis to the
customers, depending on whom our Group has maintained a
longer business relationship.

The trade receivables balance increased by approximately
230.5% from approximately RMB29.5 million as at 31
December 2009 to RMB97.5 million as at 31 December 2010.
The increase in trade receivables as at 31 December 2010 is
mainly attributable to the relaxation of credit periods granted to
our customers during 2010 which aimed to maintain the long-
term business relationship with our customers and also attract
of business opportunities under the expansion of our production
capacity.

As such, the debtors’ turnover days increased from 7 days for
the year ended 31 December 2009 to 17 days for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

FERFHEABXH
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BEEF W& D

Trade payables and creditors’ turnover days

Our trade payable balance increased by approximately 66.2%
from RMB45.5 million as at 31 December 2009 to RMB75.6
million as at 31 December 2010. The credit periods granted
by various suppliers generally range from 3 days to 30 days.
The creditors’ turnover days were 20 and 23 for each of the
year ended 31 December 2009 and 2010, respectively. It is our
Group’s policy to settle all of the outstanding balances with
the suppliers within the maximum credit period granted so as
to maintain the relationships with the respective suppliers. We
purchased raw materials in line with our production needs and
the fluctuation in creditors’ turnover days is affected by our
purchases based on production plans.

Financial resources

The financial resources of the Group continued to be strong. As
at 31 December 2010, shareholders’ funds of the Group totalled
RMB2,847.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
16.1% from RMB2,452.3 million at 31 December 2009.
The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB447.8 million as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009:
RMB682.8 million).

The Group continues to enjoy a stable and strong net cash
inflow from operations. During the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010, the net cash generated from operations was
RMB432.0 million and RMB565.3 million, respectively.

Financial management and treasury policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash
management and investment of uncommitted funds with an
objective of enhancing the practicable returns for shareholders
and maintaining adequate liquidity and preservation of capital.
The Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level and aim to
ensure that adequate financial resources are available for
refinancing and business growth. The Group reviews its liquidity
and financing arrangements periodically.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant interest
rate movements and rates are approximately fixed. As at 31
December 2010, the Group did not have any bank borrowings.
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The Group conducts its business transactions principally in the
PRC. All of the Group’s turnover and cost of sales and most of
the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB. RMB is the functional currency of the Group’s principal
operating subsidiary and used as the reporting currency in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. As such, the fluctuation of RMB against foreign
currencies during the years did not have significant impact on
the results of the Group.

Capital expenditure

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded
aggregate additions to property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress and change in prepayments for the
acquisition of plant and equipment of approximately RMB725.4
million (2009: RMB939.4 million).

Capital commitments, contingencies and charge on assets

The Group will further invest RMB452.9 million to expand the
production capacity and re-engineer and modify the existing
production facilities to enhance production efficiency. Such
capital commitments will be financed by the internal resources
of the Group.

The Group has environmental contingencies under the
increasingly stringent environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. However, as at the date hereof,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure for
environmental remediation and is currently not involved in
any environmental remediation. In addition, the outcome of
environmental liabilities under proposed or future environmental
legislation cannot be reasonably estimated at present. As such,
the Group has not accrued any amounts for environmental
remediation relating to its operations. Saved as disclosed
above, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2010.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group did not have any
property, plant and equipment secured for any borrowings.
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Use of proceeds from the Initial Public Offering

Upon the initial public offering of the Company on 2 October
2007 (the “Listing Date”), the Group received net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$1,492.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,445.5 million), after deduction of related
expenses and the exercise of Over-allotment Option (Note 1)
on the Listing Date. As disclosed in the Prospectus, our Group
planned to apply most of the net proceeds to expand our
production capacity as well as to re-engineer and modify our
existing production facilities to enhance production efficiency.
As at 31 December 2010, the net proceeds had been applied as
follows:

BRARHABRERSREAR

ARARZZEZTLFF+AZBULETAEED
BAAABRER ASERNAMBRIEFE
4 %1,492,800,0007%8 T & R 49 A R ¥
1,445,500,000 7t) (MR B & A &R LM B EATT
{FRBRERCIRAE (Tt 1)18) - AN BIRERFTHE -
REEFEBABOEFEFEANBERER -
UREBRNEEELEERMUIEFEEBE -
R-ZE—TFE+-A=+—8  AEREFED
ERRTFEHE

Amount Balance
utilised up to as at
Planned 31 December 31 December
amount 2010 2010
BEE-ZE—EF R=-ZE—FF
+=A=+—8B +=RA=+-—-H
fTEeE EEALE 2 &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARBFIT AR FT
Settlement of the remaining balance XM EEE 754 ER Y
of the construction costs of R
Production line no. 7 163,300 163,300 —
Construction of new Production lines ZEESEF 11 HEER
nos. 8 to 11 720,000 720,000 —
Construction of new Production lines 2iEE 12 E % 1355
nos. 12 to 13 (Note 2) EEFMF2) 360,000 360,000 —
Re-engineering and modification of ERRBEEI1RE2H
the existing Production lines nos. 1 BEEER
and 2 40,000 40,000 —
1,283,300 1,283,300 —
Notes: Kat -
1. Pursuant to an international placing underwriting agreement 1. BEBHA-_ZEZTLFNA-+THZEBRESER

dated 20 September 2007, the Company granted an option (the
“Over-allotment Option”) to ICEA Securities Limited (“ICEA"),
the lead manager of the Company’s share offer, whereby the
Company was required to allot and issue up to an aggregate
45,000,000 additional shares to cover over allocations in the
international placing. The exercise price per share for the Over-
allotment Option was HK$5.35. On the Listing Date, the Over-
allotment Option was fully exercised by ICEA and, as a result, the
Company issued 45,000,000 additional shares on the same date.
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2. As disclosed in the Prospectus, in the event that the Over-
allotment Option is exercised, our Group planned to apply part of
the additional net proceeds of RMB360.0 million for doubling the
production capacity of the planned new Production lines nos. 10
to 11 from 60,000 tonnes to 120,000 tonnes. The Over-allotment
Option was exercised on the Listing Date and our Group decided
to further increase our production capacity by 60,000 tonnes by
way of constructing two more Production lines nos. 12 to 13.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, our Group employed approximately
1,500 employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. Key components
of the Group’s remuneration packages include basic salary,
medical insurance, discretionary cash bonus and retirement
benefit scheme. Promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on a performance related basis.

The Group has neither experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruptions to its operations due to
labour disputes, nor has it experienced any difficulties in the
recruitment and retention of experienced employees. The Group
maintains a good working relationship with its employees.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. ZHU Yu Guo, aged 55, is the co-founder of QX Group. Dr.
Zhu was appointed as an executive Director and a chairman
of the Board in September 2006. He is a director of various
subsidiaries and associated corporations of the Company.
He is also a director of Boom Instant Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing
and planning the business strategies of the Group. Dr.
Zhu completed tertiary education with major in corporate
management in Shandong Province Economic Management
Official Institute* in the PRC in April 1992. Prior to the
incorporation of Shandong QX, which is now a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Dr. Zhu had been engaged in work
relating to the manufacture of paper manufacturing machinery
parts for over 10 years during which he also studied the features
of different types of paper products and has accumulated
extensive experience and knowledge in paper manufacturing
industry. In 1990, Dr. Zhu was appraised as an economist
by Zouping County Science and Technology Committee*. In
July 2003, he was honoured by Shandong Provincial People’s
Government as “Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Shandong
Province, the PRC*”. In January 2007, Dr. Zhu was hired by
the Information Management Institute of Shandong Economic
Institute as a parttime professor. In November 2007, Dr. Zhu
received the “World Outstanding Chinese Award” from the
World Outstanding Chinese Association and World Chinese
Business Investment Foundation. He was also conferred with
Honorary Doctoral Degree from Sinte Gleska University of
California. In 2009, Dr. Zhu was conferred as one of the
"Qutstanding Entrepreneur of Papermaking Industry in China”*
by China Paper Association. Dr. Zhu is the spouse of Ms. Sun
Rui Fang, a non-executive Director, and the father of Mr. Zhu
Mo Qun, a vice-chairman of the Board.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. ZHU Mo Qun, aged 31, is the co-founder of QX Group.
He was appointed as an executive Director, a general manager
of the Company as well as a vice-chairman of the Board in
September 2006. He is a director of various subsidiaries and
associated corporations of the Company. He is also a director
of Boom Instant Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Zhu is responsible for the overall management
of the Group’s business. He completed tertiary legal education
in Shandong Province Political & Legal Management Official
Institute* in the PRC in July 2001. In 2004, he was awarded
with the title of International Professional Manager by
International Managers Union. In January 2005, he was
approved by China Human Resource Exchange Centre* to
become a member of database of experts in the PRC. The
database is known as “National Database of Human Resources
in Business Operation and Management*” which stores the
information of senior enterprise administrators. In 2005, he
was appraised as one of the “Ten Outstanding Entrepreneurs
in Shandong*” by Appraisal Committee for Ten Outstanding
Entrepreneurs in Shandong*. In April 2006, he was honoured
jointly by Binzhou City Committee of the Communist Youth
League* and State Economic and Trade Commission in Binzhou
City* as "Outstanding Young Entrepreneur in Binzhou City*"”.
Mr. Zhu is the son of Dr. Zhu Yu Guo, a chairman of the Board,
and Ms. Sun Rui Fang, a non-executive Director.

Mr. SUN Zhen Shui, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
Director in September 2007. Mr. Sun is responsible for
managing the financial and administrative affairs of the Group.
He completed tertiary education in business management in
Shandong Province Economic Management Official Institute*
in the PRC in May 1994 and obtained from Shandong Province
Binzhou District Professional Title Reform Leader Group* a
qualification as a qualified accountant in the PRC in December
1994. Mr. Sun has been a supervising accountant of Changshan
Town Economy Committee* for a period from 1983 to 2004.
He has over 20 years of experiences in the financial field.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEERE

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Non-executive Director

Ms. SUN Rui Fang, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in September 2007. She is a director of various
subsidiaries and associated corporations of the Company.
She is also a director of Boom Instant Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Prior to such appointment, Ms.
Sun had, since the inception of Shandong QX, assisted Dr. Zhu
Yu Zuo, a chairman of the Board and Mr. Zhu Mo Qun, a vice-
chairman of the Board, in attending general administrative
works of Shandong QX. Ms. Sun is the spouse of Dr. Zhu Yu
Guo and the mother of Mr. Zhu Mo Qun.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Wei, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in September 2007. Mr. Zhao completed
tertiary education in Dalian Institute of Light Industry (now
known as “Dalian Polytechnic University”) in the PRC in June
1982, majoring in paper manufacturing. Mr. Zhao became a
senior engineer accredited by China Light Industry Association*
in December 1993 and is now the vicepresident and general
secretary of China Paper Association. Mr. Zhao has been a
member of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United
Nations since 2007. Mr. Zhao has also been a deputy chief
member of the Nationwide Paper Making Industry Standardized
Technology Committee since 2006. Mr. Zhao is currently an
independent director of Guangdong Guanhao High-Tech Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the
PRC. Mr. Zhao has accumulated approximately 28 years of
experience in the paper making industry.

Mr. WANG Lu, aged 30, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in September 2007. He graduated from
Shandong University in the PRC in July 2003 with a degree in
computer science and technology and subsequently obtained
a master’'s degree in information technology from Monash
University in Australia in October 2005. He has been a lecturer
of a university in the PRC. He currently works as engineer at
YanTai University in the PRC. Mr. Wang has approximately 7
years of experience in computer engineering.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEEBE

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. KWONG Kwan Tong, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2007. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He is currently a chief financial
officer of Verdure International Holding Company Limited.
Mr. Kwong has over 20 years of experience in management
accounting and financial control.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SUN Shu Guang, aged 57, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager and the head of finance department of
Shandong QX in April 2003, and is responsible for the Group’s
financial management function in the PRC. Mr. Sun completed
tertiary education in Shandong Province Communist Party
School* in the PRC in December 1994, majoring in economic
administration. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sun had worked
in the economic authorities of the PRC government. He has
extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. POON Tsz Hang, aged 33, was appointed as financial
controller of the Company in May 2009 and is responsible for
the Group’s overall financial management, accounting and
investor relations. Mr. Poon graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy.
Mr. Poon is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group in December 2007, Mr. Poon worked with
an international accounting firm. He has over 10 years of
experience in auditing and accounting.

Ms. LAM Wai Yee, Sophie, aged 35, joined the Group in
January 2008 and was appointed as company secretary of the
Company in May 2009. Ms. Lam is responsible for the Group’s
corporate services including compliance, company secretarial,
human resources and corporate communications. Ms. Lam holds
a bachelor’s degree in translation and a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration from City University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Lam is also an fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 10 years of experience in
compliance and company secretarial profession.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

The Board has pleasure in submitting the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of QX Group
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 December 2010 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated income statement.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30
June 2010 (six months ended 30 June 2009: HK3.277 cents per
share).

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 in scrip form
equivalent to HK8.633 cents (2009: HK7.403 cents) per share
with a cash option and a special cash dividend of HK3 cents
(2009: Nil) per share to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday,
18 May 2011. Subject to the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in
the new shares, each of the shareholders will be allotted fully
paid shares having an aggregate market value equal to the
total amount which such shareholders could elect to receive in
cash. They will be given an option to elect to receive the final
dividend cash in lieu of the allotment of shares either in whole
or in part. These proposed dividends are subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 18 May 2011. The
dividends will be paid on or about Thursday, 16 June 2011.

Details about the scrip dividend scheme (“Scheme”) in
relation to the final dividend will be set out in a circular to be
despatched to shareholders on or about Monday, 11 April 2011
and the full details of the Scheme will be set out in another
circular to be sent to the shareholders together with a form of
election on or about Wednesday, 25 May 2011.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 12 May 2011 to Wednesday, 18 May 2011, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26/F,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 May 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity on page 62 of this annual report and note 23 to the
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2010 are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately RMB1,354.2
million, of which approximately RMB119.3 million and RMB41.4
million have been proposed as a final dividend and special cash
dividend for the year respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment

during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. ZHU Yu Guo (Chairman)>*

Mr. ZHU Mo Qun (Vice-chairman)**
Mr. SUN Zhen Shui*

Non-executive Director
Ms. SUN Rui Fang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. ZHAO Wei" *?

Mr. WANG Lu"?*?

Mr. KWONG Kwan Tong"*”’

Notes:

1. Member of Audit Committee

2. Member of Nomination Committee
3. Member of Remuneration Committee
4. Member of Executive Committee

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Dr. Zhu Yuo Guo, Ms. Sun Rui Fang and Mr. Zhao Wei will
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years. During the
year, their appointments have been renewed for 2 years upon
their respective expiry, on substantially the same terms.

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a period of 2 years in accordance
with their respective appointment letters.

The Directors shall retire by rotation and be eligible for re-
election subject to Article 108 of the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors and their respective
associates has engaged in or had an interest in a business,
which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the year are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2010, the number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 1,057,594,300; and the interests of the
Directors in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were set out below:
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Long Positions in Shares of the Company REATRDZ2HE
Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding
E=EE 54 EntE BEZEBRYEE REZBHNEISL
Dr. ZHU Yu Guo Interest of controlled corporation 716,804,812 67.78%
KREEEL s NCI 2 (Note)
(H152)
Ms. SUN Rui Fang Interest of spouse 716,804,812 67.78%
BImm L B R (Note)
(H152)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

ESREQAREABEERSD 2 #E(F)

Note: Kist -

ZE K 250 Boom Instant Limited E 5 # & -
Addinsight Limited #HH 80% kinigEs - N EEE
FFEAREBEIG LA Addinsight Limited 2 87.5% E#
Befn izt - RIBEF RBEEN - KR AESE Boom
Instant Limited 76 2 R —#tA& 7D 2 #a o

All these shares were beneficially owned by Boom Instant Limited which
was owned as to 80% by Addinsight Limited. By virtue of his 87.5%
direct interest in Addinsight Limited, Dr. Zhu Yu Guo, a chairman of the
Board, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares owned
by Boom Instant Limited under the SFO.

REFHRBEGS  FRTEEFRRFTREI(REER
T2 BB AR R LA R — L) 2 s -

Ms. Sun Rui Fang, an non-executive Director and the spouse of Dr. Zhu
Yu Guo, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares as
Dr. Zhu under the SFO.

ZEBRMET X EERERARR RN S —EFT
82 2 B Boom Instant Limited #7482 BD AR °

These shares were same as those shares held by Boom Instant Limited as
disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Shares of the Company” below.

Long position in Shares of Associated Corporations of the RAQARMEBEERG ZHR
Company

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of ordinary shares of the issued
associated Capacity/Nature held ordinary shares
Name of Director corporation of interest BEZ HERTERERZ
E=EE HEEE A B RntE ZEREE BHOBEIL
Dr. ZHU Yu Zuo Boom Instant Interest of controlled 80 80%
KEEIET Limited corporation
k| VNCIL:
Addinsight Beneficial owner/ 87.5/12.5 87.5%/12.5%
Limited Interest of spouse
ERBEEAN/TBER
Ms. SUN Rui Fang Boom Instant Interest of spouse 80 80%
EeSi poe e Limited BB 5
Addinsight Beneficial owner/ 12.5/87.5 12.5%/87.5%
Limited Interest of spouse
ERBEEAN/TBER
Mr. ZHU Mo Qun Boom Instant Interest of controlled 20 20%
REBRSTE Limited corporation (Note)
2 NG (H15E)
Be Broad Beneficial owner 100 100%
Limited EmEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (CONTINUED)

Note:

All these shares were beneficially owned by Be Broad Limited. By virtue
of his 100% direct interest in Be Broad Limited, Mr. Zhu Mo Qun, a
vice-chairman of the Board, was deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares in Boom Instant Limited held by Be Broad Limited under
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of
the Directors has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year, was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or their spouse or children under age of
18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

ESRARAREEBEERG <& (E)

ZERD 2 EH Be Broad Limited B A o RIEHE
HREGKD  ENEFSREREKBELEHRS Be
Broad Limited 2 100% EERMHED  BERAEHES
Be Broad Limited #8 2[F—#t Boom Instant Limited
Rfn 2 #E AR o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than the Directors) in
the shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company, were set out below:

ESREROIERE 2EN(E)

RIZ-—ZTFF+-A=+—H REBFEHE
G015 336 IR TF 2 A AR B R M AT 8 (AR
BIEME)  TERRREMAL(ERHRINRK

NREAD 2 BT

Approximate
percentage

Number of of the issued

Name of substantial ordinary shares ordinary shares

shareholder held HERTEERZ
TERRER BFEZEBRYE BRES T
Boom Instant Limited 716,804,812 67.78%
(Note 1)
(Htat 1)

Addinsight Limited 716,804,812 67.78%
(Note 1)
(Htat 1)

The Overlook Partners’ Fund L.P. 64,596,219 6.11%
(Note 2)
(Htat2)

Notes: Mt -

1. All these shares were beneficially owned by Boom Instant Limited. 1. ZERH 2 E A Boom Instant Limited &z
By virtue of its 80% direct interest in Boom Instant Limited, A o 1 Addinsight Limited #7%A Boominstant
Addinsight Limited was deemed to be interested in the same Limited Z280% BB iEm  BEZESFRHPE
parcel of shares held by Boom Instant Limited under the SFO. 16 - ®AE B¥A Boominstant Limited 5
Dr. Zhu Yu Zuo, Mr. Zhu Mo Qun and Ms. Sun Rui Fang are the ZR—HBEHzERS - AEEEL  KBEHL
directors of both Boom Instant Limited and Addinsight Limited. 4+ KRR Z 19K Boom Instant Limited &

Addinsight Limited ME AR ZESE -
2. All these shares were beneficially owned by The Overlook 2. ZERMEEE The Overlook Partners’ Fund

Partners’ Fund L.P..

Overlook Investments L.P., in its capacity as the general partner
of The Overlook Partners’ Fund L.P., and Overlook Investments
(BVI) Limited, in its capacity as the general partner of Overlook
Investments L.P., were deemed to be interested in such shares
under the SFO.

By virtue of their 100% indirect interest in Overlook Investments
(BVI) Limited, Mr. Richard Hurd Lawrence JR. and Mrs. Dee
Macleod Lawrence were deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares as Overlook Investments (BVI) Limited in
accordance with the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 8 September
2007 whereby any Directors or selected participants may be
granted options to subscribe for the Company’s shares at the
discretion of the Board. The principal terms of the scheme are
summarised in note 27 to the financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Through the issue of 1,045,000,000 new shares at HK$5.35
each on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in October
2007, the Group had raised approximately HK$1,492.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,445.5 million), after
deduction of related expenses. The use of such proceeds by the
Group during the year is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on page 30 of this annual report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 126 to
128 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes adopted by the Group
during the year are set out in note 2 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the year was as follows:

FEERFRHER

BRAAKEEREF RERERF R B AT H
ERNMRBEIEHAT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEAEEE DL
Sales Purchases
MHEE BERBE
The largest customer BAEP 11.3% -
Five largest customers in aggregate AARBEFPAER 21.7% —
The largest supplier BAMIER — 23.7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARHEEER — 55.2%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their respective
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this annual
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company had
complied with the applicable Code Provisions save for the
deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1. The full details of
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2010, or where applicable, up
to the date of this annual report, are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 45 to 55 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
ZHU Yu Guo K EH

Chairman Z /&

Shandong, the PRC, 30 March 2011
hELE —E-—F=A=+H
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QX Paper is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance practices and corporate conduct.
It is the belief of the Board that such commitment can
enhance the performance of the Group and serve to
enhance our shareholders’ value. To this end, the Board and
our management will make continuous effort to reinforce
our standards of corporate governance with emphasis on
independence, effective internal control, transparency and
accountability to shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company has
complied with the applicable Code Provisions and principles
under the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules except for the following deviation:

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Currently, the
Company does not have any person holding the title of CEO.
Dr. Zhu Yu Guo, who apart from being the Company’s major
shareholder, executive Director and chairman of the Board,
also assumed responsibilities which are comparable to those of
a CEO. Dr. Zhu is responsible for overseeing and planning the
business strategies of the Group as well as providing leadership
and management to the Board. The role of the chairman is
separated from that of the general manager of the Company.
Mr. Zhu Mo Qun (the son of Dr. Zhu), an executive Director,
general manager of the Company as well as vice-chairman of
the Board, is responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s business operations and implementing the business
strategies formulated by the Board. The Board considers
that this management structure can provide the Group with
consistent leadership and enables the Group to make and
implement the Board’s decisions promptly and efficiently. The
Board will regularly review the effectiveness of this structure to
ensure that such structure is appropriate in view of the Group's
prevailing circumstances.

MEMERTHEBRFZOETARATRREER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEERERE
The Company’s corporate governance structure currently in RNATIREE 7 DESEEENT -

place is as follows:

Management
EHEE
Outlined below are the corporate governance practices adopted TXBAARARRAREBEE_T—EFF+_A=+—
by the Company in compliance with the principles and spirit AIEFE(GRMER  EEAFREMAIL)ER
of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2010, or TEEATAZRANRBBMEMNCEEE RS
where applicable, up to the date of this annual report. o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises 3 executive Directors,1 non-
executive Director and 3 INEDs as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. ZHU Yu Guo (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Mo Qun (Vice-chairman)
Mr. SUN Zhen Shui

Non-executive Director
Ms. SUN Rui Fang
INEDS

Mr. ZHAO Wei
Mr. WANG Lu
Mr. KWONG Kwan Tong

The Directors are well-versed in respective areas such as
papermaking industry’s knowledge and technical know-how,
accounting and finance and business management. The Board
as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among them, if any, are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages
32 to 35 of this annual report and the Company’s website at
WWW.QgXxpaper.com.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and
policies of the Group and supervising our management. Some
functions including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of
material transactions, matters involving a conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder or Director of the Company, the
approval of the interim and final results and other disclosures
to the public or regulators are reserved by the Board for
consideration and approval. Matters not specifically reserved
to the Board and necessary for the daily management and
operation of the Company are delegated to the executive
committee of the Board and senior management of the
Company.

Exg
E:lod

EZHABRIAUTES 1 RFRTEER
3FBUIFMITES - FHIBFWAT

BITEFE

KERBL(EE)
REBEEE(FIEE)
RIS E

HUTEE
Rimir Lt
BUHBITEE

HEEE
ITBkE
BREZE KA

EENRAMIAEEE2ERR  MINEHEY
HMBLEMANZ S REBMARBMEEE M
EFEeEBENEREREHEREE 2 FE -
EEVZEERREZAEGNE)BENAFRS 32
EIAIEENSNERERE ]| —& MARFH

Ik www.gxpaper.com ©

ESEZEHR

EXSRRARFIAKEZ RIS M RBRRALE
BEEREE - ETEEREFSESELILE B
(Hh Bl BRI EEAR S B RAREE
ERRIEFMAGRER - HEPHRRH
RE ARAARIEERBIEEMIRE - ML
FEEHEFSHR  URARAZEEEEE
BHUEETZEE  MRERARREEGET
ZHITEZEGRSRERERE -

Annual Report 2010 F#§

47



48

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHEABE

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108 of the Articles of Association provides that all
the Directors, including chairman of the Board, are subject
to retirement from office at least once every 3 years at each
annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.
Under Article 105 of the Articles of Association, the office of a
Director is liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the
Company may remove any Director by an ordinary resolution at
a general meeting as prescribed in Article 114 of the Articles of
Association.

Executive Directors

All the executive Directors have entered into service agreements
with the Company for a term of 3 years and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association. Each of them is entitled to a
fixed Director’s fee per annum and a discretionary bonus in an
amount to be determined by the Board. Such emoluments are
determined with reference to his experience and contributions
to the Group, the Group’s performance and profitability, as well
as the prevailing market conditions. An executive Director may
not vote on any Board'’s resolution regarding the amount of his
or her bonus (if any).

Non-executive Director and INEDs

The non-executive Director and INEDs have the same duties
of care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive
Directors. They are expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in
respective areas of papermaking industry and related technical
know-how, engineering, accounting and finance. With their
professional knowledge and experience, the INEDs advise
the Company on its operation and management; provide
independent opinion on the Company’s connected transactions;
participate in various committees’ meetings of the Board. The
INEDs also contribute to provide adequate checks and balance
to protect the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a
whole, and to promote the development of the Group.

All the non-executive Director and INEDs have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of 2
years and are subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provision of the Articles of
Association.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs to be independent
as at the date of this annual report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors under the
Listing Rules and other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on
the latest legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that
they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the Listing
Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged,
the Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent
professional advisers whenever deemed necessary by them at
the Company’s expense.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board held a
total of 5 meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)”) with an attendance
rate of 100% to review and approve, among other things,
the 2009 annual results and 2010 interim results, connected
transaction and strategic business direction of the Group.

The Board Meetings are permitted to be held by means of
telephone or other means of electronic communication under
the Articles of Association.

Reasonable notices are served and comprehensive information
is provided to the Board members in advance of all the Board
Meetings in order to enable them to make informed decisions
on all matters transacted at the Board Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are normally conducted
by the chairman of the Board who ensures that sufficient
time is allowed for discussion among the Directors and equal
opportunities are being given to the Directors to express their
views and share their concerns.

The company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the
Company is responsible for preparing minutes recording all
matters transacted and resolved at the Board Meetings. All
minutes of the Board Meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors.
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Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure that the
Group’s pay levels are competitive in attracting and retaining
the Directors, senior management and employees as well as
motivating them in the continual pursuit of the Group’s goal
and objectives. The remuneration package of the Directors and
senior management is performance-based and takes into
account factors such as the Group’s business performance and
prevailing market practices. The key components of the Group's
remuneration package include basic salary, medical insurance,
discretionary cash bonus and retirement benefit scheme. No
individual Director or senior management will be involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board will consult with
chairman of the Board in respect of their recommendations
in determining the remuneration of the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company. The details of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” below.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff
of the Group for their potential liabilities incurred by them in
discharging their duties. The Company reviews the insurance
coverage for the Directors and the Group’s senior staff on an
annual basis.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the QX Securities Dealing Code for
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees
(the “Relevant Employees”) who are or may be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry by
the Company, the Company confirmed that all the Directors
and the Relevant Employees have complied with the required
standard as set out in both the QX Securities Dealing Code and
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Board Committees

The Board has established a total of 4 board committees
including executive committee (the “Executive Committee”),
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination
committee (“Nomination Committee”) (collectively the
"Committees”) to oversee specific aspects of the Group’s
affairs. The Committees have been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their respective duties. Each of the
Committees has adopted specific terms of reference covering
its duties, powers and functions which will be reviewed by
the Board from time to time. The terms of reference of the
Committees have been posted on website of the Company
at www.qgxpaper.com. The Company Secretary also acts as
secretary of the Committees. The Committees adopt as far
as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of the Board
Meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of
meetings and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each
of the Committees are set out below:

(1) Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all 3
executive Directors and is chaired by Dr. Zhu Yu Guo, a
chairman of the Board. The Board delegates powers to
the Executive Committee to conduct and supervise the
business and daily operation of the Group as well as its
staff. The Executive Committee is also responsible for
overseeing the management of the Company, dealing
with matters regarding finance, investment, corporate
governance and corporate communication of the Group.
During the year, the Executive Committee held 1 meeting
with an attendance rate of 100%.

All the matters considered and decided by the Executive
Committee at the meetings will be recorded in details by
minutes. A summary report of the businesses transacted
at the Executive Committee meetings will be submitted to
the Board for review regularly.
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(2)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all 3 INEDs
and is chaired by Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong, a professional
accountant with over 20 years of experience in
management accounting and financial control. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and the internal
control of the Group. Moreover, the Audit Committee
is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the Company’s external auditors as well as approving
their terms of engagement, including remuneration. All
members of the Audit Committee have unrestricted access
to the Group's external auditors and management.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held 3
meetings with an attendance rate of 100% to review,
inter alia, (a) the financial reporting matters including the
review of 2009 annual results and 2010 interim results
of the Group; (b) the re-appointment of the Group’s
external auditors; and (c) the staffing and resources of the
Company’s Internal Audit Department (the “Internal Audit
Department”).

In view of the various discussions between the auditors
of the Company and the Company regarding the
issues raised by the auditors in relation to the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010, the Audit Committee of the Company
comprised of all the independent non-executive Directors
had recently conducted a preliminary investigation into
the state of affairs and the internal control system of the
Group, and through the gathering of evidence and the
conducting of verification so far, the Audit Committee did
not discover any significant irregularities in the Group’s
internal control system and business operations. With a
view to addressing the issues raised by the auditors, the
Audit Committee will engage an independent professional
advisor to conduct a review of the Group’s internal control
system and to conduct further investigation into the
matters raised by the Company’s auditors. The Company
will keep shareholders informed of the progress by making
further announcement as and when appropriate.
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(3) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4
members including 1 executive Director and all 3 INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Zhu Yu
Guo, a chairman of the Board. The primary duty of the
Remuneration Committee is to review and determine
on behalf of the Board specific remuneration packages
and conditions of employment for the Directors and
senior management. Each of the Directors is prohibited
from involving in the determination of his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee meets at
least once a year.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held
2 meetings with an attendance rate of 100%. At the
meetings, members of the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Group.

(4) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4
members including 1 executive Director and all 3 INEDs.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhu Mo
Qun, a vice-chairman of the Board. The primary duty of
the Nomination Committee is to make recommendations
to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies of the
Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held
1 meeting with an attendance rate of 100%. At the
meeting, members of the Nomination Committee have
reviewed the structure and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of INEDs in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, and the
suitability of the re-election of the Directors who are
subject to the retirement by rotation at the 2011 annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Group has endeavoured to enhance its corporate
transparency and communications with shareholders and the
investment community. Through the timely distribution of
press releases, the Group has also kept the public abreast of
its latest developments. To ensure shareholders and investors
can follow closely on the Group’s business development, our
corporate website at www.qgxpaper.com acts as an effective
channel for providing comprehensive and updated information
on the Group’s business operation and development. Useful
information which is available on our corporate website include
corporate information, announcements, circulars, press releases,
results presentations as well as interim and annual reports.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHEABE

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
platform for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
The chairman of the Board, the Board members and the senior
management of the Company are available to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

During the year, the Directors and senior management of the
Company participated in several meetings and teleconferences
with fund managers and analysts, providing excellent
opportunities for the investment community to express
their views on the Group and to exchange thoughts with
the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Company has designated key officers to communicate with
institutional shareholders, analysts and potential investors to
ensure consistency of the Group’s information.

Our Directors and management review the Group's disclosure of
information and effectiveness of communication with investors
and shareholders from time to time.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
financial statements of the Group in accordance with relevant
statutory requirements and International Financial Reporting
Standards and ensuring that the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Group’s financial position. To this
end, the Directors strives to present a comprehensive and
balanced assessment of the Group’s development and prospects
in all corporate communications, including but not limited to
annual and interim reports, any price-sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, any
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.

In addition, monthly business and financial reports are prepared
by the Group’s finance department with a view to providing the
Board and the management with timely and reliable financial/
operational data and information to ensure that they fully
understand the financial position and operating conditions of
the Group all the time.

The Directors consider that the Group had adequate resources
to continue in business in the foreseeable future and are not
aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHEABE

A statement by the external auditors regarding their
responsibilities with respect to financial reporting on the
Group’s financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 56 to 57 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal
controls and risk management procedures to identify and
manage the risks that may be faced by the Group, with
an aim of safeguarding the Group’s assets and improving
the operational efficiency, corporate governance and risk
management of the Group.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal
controls and risk management procedures in the Group, and
for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal control is independently
conducted by the Internal Audit Department on an on-going
basis.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department performed risk-
based audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls so as to assure that (a) key business and operational
risks of the Group are identified and managed; and (b) the
Group's internal controls are carried out appropriately.

The aforesaid review made by the Internal Audit Department
has been reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the Board
together with its assessment and recommendations. Based on
the results of the review together with the assessment and
recommendations made by the Audit Committee, the Board is
satisfied that during the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group has implemented adequate internal controls and risk
management procedures. No significant areas of concern which
might materially affect the Group’s operation and the interests
of our shareholders were identified.

With a view to addressing the issues raised by the auditors in
relation to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee will
engage an independent professional advisor to conduct a review
of the Group’s internal control system and to conduct further
investigation into the matters raised by the Company’s auditors.
The Company will keep shareholders informed of the progress
by making further announcement as and when appropriate.

REMUNERATION OF INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Company’s independent external auditors are KPMG.

During the year, the annual audit fees paid by the Company to
KPMG were approximately HK$1,150,000.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Ltd (the “Company”) set
out on pages 58 to 125, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2010, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B RS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

When performing our audit procedures and seeking
independent corroborative evidence, we identified
inconsistencies between the information contained in the
Group’s accounting records with respect to transactions
and balances with certain customers and suppliers and
independently obtained information. We also identified
discrepancies which indicated that documents contained in the
Group’s accounting records relating to some of the Group’s
bank transactions may not be authentic or otherwise reliable.
We have not been able to obtain satisfactory explanations from
the management of the Group concerning these matters and
we were also unable to satisfy ourselves that these instances
were isolated occurrences.

This has called into question the reliability of the financial and
other information and documents provided by management
and undermined our ability to rely on the Group’s system of
internal control to safeguard the genuineness of accounting
records and documentation. Given these circumstances, there
were no practicable audit procedures that we could perform to
satisfy ourselves that the information and documents presented
to us for the purpose of our audit are complete and accurate in
all material respects, nor to quantify the extent of adjustments
that might be necessary in respect of the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, including the
comparative figures for the prior year and opening balances.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and as to
whether the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e WaE R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE T —FFL_A=1+—HIFE(UAREZZ])

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZEThEF

Note ‘000 ‘000

23 FT FT

Turnover =2 4 2,058,916 1,530,321

Cost of sales SHEK A (1,539,131) (1,105,517)

Gross profit EX 519,785 424,804

Other revenue Hip ezt 5 2,212 4,371

Other net loss HMEsEERE 5 (189) (62)

Selling expenses HERX (26,426) (19,233)

Administrative expenses TR 2 (39,409) (34,018)

Profit from operations R 455,973 375,862

Finance costs L& AR 6(a) — (4,168)

Profit before taxation BREL AR R 6 455,973 371,694

Income tax FTiS 7(a) (58,467) (47,607)

Profit for the year FEEA 397,506 324,087
Earnings per share (RMB) BREFNARY) 11

(restated)

(&%)

Basic HAR 38 cents & 31 cents %

The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set

out in note 23(d).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE T —FF_A=1+—HIFE(UARKZZ])

2010 2009
—E2-=2F ZETNF
Note ‘000 ‘000
i3 Fr For
Profit for the year FERF 397,506 324,087
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEmKE
for the year
Exchange differences on translation of HMERZE A RARBE([FE )
financial statements of operations RINETS 2 ISR EEZ
outside the People’s Republic of China MEHZERE
(“the PRC") (2,371) (153)
Total comprehensive income FEEMWEHEEE
for the year 395,135 323,934
Attributable to: Ptk
Equity shareholders of the Company RAEE=FEA 395,135 323,934

The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial

statements.

REEAE125 B ZMEBRILFHEHRE 2 — =P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R R

At 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)
Ro-B—FF+ - J=1—HUAREZZ])

2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
Note ‘000 ‘000
i3 Fr For
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R NMERE 13(a) 2,015,579 1,365,520
Construction in progress EEITR 15 253,878 296,911
Lease prepayments HEFESFIA 16 14,468 14,809
Prepayment for the acquisition of BB M Nk s 2 Ta R
plant and equipment 13(a) 24,029 60,780
Prepayment for flood prevention 7 34k A =2 TR AN 38
expenses 17 41,225 —
2,349,179 1,738,020
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 8 18(a) 48,962 37,334
Trade and other receivables JE U B 5 AR R Kz EL At FE WK IE 19 111,288 72,407
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESZED 20 447,763 682,764
608,013 792,505
Current liabilities nREBE
Trade and other payables FE1-T B 5 BRI ELAth A< 5K 1E 21 87,040 58,000
Current taxation BN EA% 18 22(a) 22,708 20,216
109,748 78,216
e RERERE el leee
NET ASSETS EERE 2,847,444 2,452,309
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital f& A 23(b) 102,427 100,258
Reserves EE 2,745,017 2,352,051
TOTAL EQUITY EEEE 2,847,444 2,452,309
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on BEeN _T——F=-A=TRILEREERR
30 March 2011.
Zhu Yu Guo K EH Zhu Mo Qun %k 2F
Director 2% Director %
The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial RS 64 125 B 2 W sE K Itk S/ 5 3k 2 — &P
statements. % o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 % AR R 5%

At 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)
KoF—FF+=A=1—F(XAR%EZS)

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Note ‘000 ‘000
Jiogza Fir For

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S E Y & 13(b) 348 586
Interests in subsidiaries SN Fo 14 1,190,648 1,220,733
1,190,996 1,221,319

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEENE O 19 378 397
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSFEY 20 76,032 83,945
76,410 84,342
Current liabilities REBAE

Other payables and accruals ABNFRLRBIEED 20 1253 ....1260
Netcurrentassets RBEEFE 75157 83,082
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,266,153 1,304,401

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR G
Share capital f& A 23(a) 102,427 100,258
Reserves B 1,163,726 1,204,143
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,266,153 1,304,401
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EFeR_E——T=A=T+RHBUERERERE -

30 March 2011.

Zhu Mo Qun K28
Director &%

Zhu Yu Guo £ EH
Director %

The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial R 64 125 B 2 Tk Itk E /15 3k 2 — &P
statements. vl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B2 _F—FF - A=1—HIEFE (UARKZ3])
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARREEREARE
Share Share Other Surplus  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserves reserve profits equity
e RAEE Etffe B Eiffk REEH EREsH
Note ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
it 7 Tz 7 7 7 7 7z
Balance at 1 January 2009 RIFENE-A-H &R 100,258 1,474,812 (10,323) 84,576 (51,480) 637,364 2,235,207
Changes in equity for 2009: “EENFRRED:
Profit for the year EERR - - - - - 324,087 304,087
Other comprehensive income EfpzmkE - - - - (153) - (153)
Total comprehensive income FENGEE - - - - (153) 324,087 323,934
Dividends approved in respect HkE-ERRE
of the previous year 23(d) - (76,990) — - - — (76,990)
Appropriation to surplus reserve ARERBGHE - - - 33,325 - (33325) -
Dividends declared in respect FEEEERMRE
of the current year 23(d) - (29.842) - - - - (29,842)
Balance at 31 December 2009 and ~ R=EEAFT-A=T-AR
1 January 2010 “3-35-R-HuEH 100,258 1,367,930 (10,323) 117,901 (51,633) 928,126 2,452,309
Changes in equity for 2010; T2-SERESE
Profit for the year EERA = = = = = 397,506 397,506
Other comprehensive income Hfp2Ek - - - - (23n) - (231)
Total comprehensive income AN - - - - 237 397,506 395,135
Appropriation to surplus reserve  AEZ RS - - - 40,612 - (40,612) -
Dividend approved in respect HEL-FERE
of the previous year 23(d) - (67,385) - - - - (67,385)
Shares issued in respect of scrip BT E-EENRRERR
dividend of previous year 23(d) 2,169 65,216 - - - - 67,385
Balance at 31 December 2010 W-8-8%+-F=1-A
&R 102,427 1,365,811 (10,323) 158,513 (54,004) 1,285,020 2,847,444
The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial NEAZ 1258 M@K ST EHRET 22—
statements. 4 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE T —FF_A=1+—HIFE(UARKZZ])

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Note ‘000 ‘000
HtaF o For
Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from operations e IRE L VIR 20(b) 565,265 432,045
PRC income tax paid B RS (55,975) (37,259)
Net cash generated from REFTHRMBRLSTHE
operating activities 509,290 394,786
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME  BER&ERTZ
plant and equipment FKRIA (2,434) (16,049)
Payment for construction in progress SR TIRFIA (674,821) (1,008,381)
Prepayment for the acquisition of plant  FE{TBE B R E M R EH K IE
and equipment (24,029) (60,780)
Prepayment for flood prevention B 4k B 2 TR A 3B
expenses (42,500) —
Net proceeds from sales of trading HERX S BHFRIBWA
securities FEE = 64,711
Interest received 2 HAIE 2,212 3,977
Dividends received from investments KEBHFERRE
in securities — 394
Net cash used in investing activities REEEMABREEHE (741,572) (1,016,128)
Financing activities RMEEH
Repayment of bank loans BERITER = (124,000)
Interest paid BERFLE = (4,168)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ERNARAAERFEE ARE
of the Company 23(d) — (106,832)
NEHeashis edlinNfilEn cing factivitic o S o - (235,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBLEEWTFERD
equivalents (232,282) (856,342)
Cash and cash equivalents —A—HBEESRESEEY
at 1 January 20(a) 682,764 1,539,373
Effect of foreign exchange ERSHIE
rate changes (2,719) (267)
Cash and cash equivalents T-A=t+—HEERELE
at 31 December EY 20(a) 447,763 682,764
The notes on pages 64 to 125 form part of these financial MRE6A4ZE 125 B 2Bt EM Bz 2 —26
statements. ) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 2= Y =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIHZEEH + UAREZS])

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
5 September 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and
trading of decorative base paper products and printing
paper product.

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”)
on 2 October 2007.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations,
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB").

These financial statements also comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS EEH + UAREZS])
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”).

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“"RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand. The
measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIHZEEH » UAREZ)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(o)

(d)

Basis of consolidation
(i)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.
The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(i)).
(ii)  Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

A financial instrument is classified as at fair value
through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial
instruments are designated at fair value through
profit or loss if the Group manages such investments
and makes purchase and sale decisions based on
their fair value. Upon initial recognition, attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
when incurred. Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(d)

(e)

()

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Net income from financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss comprises all gains
and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with interest income and expense
and dividend income attributable to those financial
instruments.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group/the Company commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent payments made to
acquire leasehold land. Leasehold land is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)). Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

()

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Buildings 40 years

— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 10 years

— Furniture and fixtures and 2-10 years

computer equipment
— Leasehold improvements Over the period of

the lease term

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and equipment
pending installation, and is initially recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed.

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
substantially ready for its intended use.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EETBEE)
(i) Impairment of assets () EERE
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables () FEWREZERAMENKZE
Z e

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For financial assets carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

0]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of the asset), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade receivables included within trade
and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

— investments in subsidiaries;

—  lease prepayments;

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  construction in progress; and

—  prepayment for the acquisition of plant
and equipment.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIHZEEH + UAREZS])

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEHBEG#E)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) BEEREE)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(i) RtEEREE)

72

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

()

)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(i)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

)

(k)

0]

(m)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and other financial institutions and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of inventories not
yet recognised as an expense.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in the
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions under which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company's
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRI EEH » UANREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(o)

Income tax

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax
assets, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIHZEEH » UAREZ5))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(p)

(q)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

(ii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(9) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments
are recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity
(“functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
outside the PRC is Hong Kong dollars and
the functional currency of the subsidiary in
the PRC is Renminbi. As the Group mainly
operates in the PRC, Renminbi is used as
the presentation currency of the Group
("presentation currency”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations outside the PRC
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
(ii)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

On disposal of an operation outside the PRC,
the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

Repair and maintenance expenditure

Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost
of overhaul, is expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the Group;

(i)  the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a
joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 2= Y =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued two revised IFRS, a number of
amendments to IFRSs and one new Interpretation that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

— IFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

— Amendments to IAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements

— Improvements to IFRSs (2009)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The developments resulted in changes in accounting
policy but none of these changes in policies has a material
impact on the current or comparative periods, for the
following reasons:

—  The impact of the majority of the revisions to IFRS
3 and IAS 27 has not yet had a material effect on
the Group’s financial statements as these changes
will first be effective as and when the Group enters
into a relevant transaction (for example, a business
combination or a disposal of a subsidiary) and there
is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded
in respect of previous such transactions.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT

2.

TEEHEREAE)
(w) 2 E#|EE)

B2 EME - BRIED BBAFMREL
ZRPESHREERMRBILEE - £
ETRFLEE  FRHAENER - AE
DEERIREHRRB 2 ITEREER
BzHETEAN  TRSEEAL
ENBTIEETRE - @RIFEXRZ
BENE - MRFTE LM RFDIRAE -
AIRETTRE -

BREEREH

B et AR BB M T ZRBRMHR
EREAET AR —BHEE  ORAKER
ARBBRTEAHEERER - EPEKE
B BHRRAB LT

— BERBERSEUEIR(CETN\F
RIERT) - REA O

— REFTERE 27 RET R - A K
BRI

— HBERMBEREEIZBEZFTZTN
F)

AEEYEERTANRITEHIEERE
B FTIL AR R o

EHSERRARELD  ERSHAE
BEENRIILREHEREAYE &
BT -

— BRERMBREERE IR LER
SRR 27 SR 2 BT R AR BET
VBEBR S (PIINEB A fr s EHE
RNEDEEREY » MZEEPH RS
HAEARE LM BEHRRERNEAY
g AYEATASIBEABERS
ZRSR B



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS EEH + UAREZS])

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The impact of the amendments to IFRS 3 (in respect
of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets)
and IAS 27 (in respect of allocation of losses to
non-controlling interests in excess of their equity
interest) have had no material impact as there is no
requirement to restate amounts recorded in previous
periods and no such deferred tax assets or losses
arose in the current period.

The amendment introduced by the /mprovements
to IFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respect of IAS
17, Leases had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group does not have
any leasehold land interests located in Hong Kong
and the Group has re-evaluated the classification
of its interests in leasehold land in PRC as to
whether, in the Group’s judgement, the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the land such that the Group is in a
position economically similar to that of a purchaser.
The Group has concluded that the classification
of such leases as operating leases continues to be
appropriate.

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are
as follows:

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008),
any business combination acquired on or after 1
January 2010 will be recognised in accordance
with the new requirements and detailed guidance
contained in IFRS 3 (revised 2008). These include the
following changes in accounting policies:

— Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination,
such as finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence
fees, and other professional and consulting
fees, will be expensed as incurred, whereas
previously they were accounted for as part
of the cost of the business combination and
therefore impacted the amount of goodwill
recognised.

— If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these
interests will be treated as if disposed of
and re-acquired at fair value on the date of
obtaining control. Previously, the step-up
approach would have been applied, whereby
goodwill was computed as if accumulated at
each stage of the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 765 3 R FfY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIHZEHEDR  UAREZS])

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.

(Continued)

— Contingent consideration will be measured
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes in the measurement of
that contingent consideration unrelated to
facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date will be recognised in profit or
loss, whereas previously these changes were
recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the
business combination and therefore impacted
the amount of goodwill recognised.

— If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or
other temporary deductible differences and
these fail to meet the recognition criteria for
deferred tax assets at the date of acquisition,
then any subsequent recognition of these
assets will be recognised in profit or loss,
rather than as an adjustment to goodwill as
was previously the policy.

— In addition to the Group’s existing policy of
measuring the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets, in future the Group may
elect, on a transaction by transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interest at fair
value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions
in IFRS 3 (revised 2008), these new accounting
policies will be applied prospectively to any business
combinations in the current or future periods.
The new policy in respect of recognition in the
movement of deferred tax assets will also be
applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses and
other temporary deductible differences acquired in
previous business combinations. No adjustments
have been made to the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that arose from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded the application of
this revised standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))
3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

—  (Continued)

— As a result of the adoption of IAS 27
(amended 2008), the following changes in
accounting policies will be applied as from 1
January 2010:

— If the Group acquires an additional
interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with
equity shareholders (the non-controlling
interests) in their capacity as owners and
therefore no goodwill will be recognised
as a result of such transactions.
Similarly, if the Group disposes of part
of its interest in a subsidiary but still
retains control, this transaction will
also be accounted for as a transaction
with equity shareholders (the non-
controlling interests) in their capacity
as owners and therefore no profit or
loss will be recognised as a result of
such transactions. Previously the Group
treated such transactions as step-
up transactions and partial disposals,
respectively.

— If the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with
any remaining interest retained by the
Group being recognised at fair value
as if reacquired. In addition, as a result
of the adoption of the amendment to
IFRS 5, if at the end of reporting period
the Group has the intention to dispose
of a controlling interest in a subsidiary,
the entire interest in that subsidiary will
be classified as held for sale (assuming
that the held for sale criteria in IFRS 5
are met) irrespective of the extent to
which the Group will retain an interest.
Previously such transactions would have
been treated as partial disposals.

B BERRE(E)

R SR B I R AU 27 5
(ZFFN\FE) AT R
BEEBHR -F—F5— A
—RREA

i) 745 5% (1 32 P8 OF 22 B P VB
RAEIZ R ZRHEAN
RIFEERIFE AGERE
Bm)ARBEBEAS D
ETZRS  BAERZ
EXHMERAE - R
o o (W AN 5% B ERO B
BRAB zEo = - BN
REBEGIE - AZX ST
BARIFEEZFE A
(SRR M ) A E R A
FMETZIRS  BTE
AzEXZMERRBR -
BERKEDRIRZEFR
IRBERZRE D H

&® o
=

HARBEXREMBRAZ
T AR S EAR
EHEZHNBAR Z2
iEm  MAKERA
EAIR RS R A T ERE
B BB ME -
S BT B A B B B 7
EEANFSFIEETA - f
RBERRTEE A H
ERME LA 2 1R AE
@ A TR RE S RE
BEZD ZMBREZ
2HEEB D BAFEN
E(RRTAEBRY B &
EEAESFEZRHELE
BE)  BEZZERIFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 2= Y =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFEZEIEH  UAEK

Z5)

5, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

—  (Continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions in IAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future
periods and therefore previous periods have not
been restated.

— In order to be consistent with the above
amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27, the
following accounting policies will be applied
as from 1 January 2010:

If the Group holds interests in the
acquiree immediately prior to obtaining
significant influence or joint control,
these interests will be treated as if
disposed of and re-acquired at fair value
on the date of obtaining significant
influence or joint control. Previously,
the step-up approach would have
been applied, whereby goodwill was
computed as if accumulated at each
stage of the acquisition.

If the Group loses significant influence
or joint control, the transaction will
be accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with any
remaining interest being recognised at
fair value as if re-acquired. Previously
such transactions were treated as partial
disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in IFRS 3
and IAS 27, these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to transactions in current or
future periods and therefore previous periods have
not been restated.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT

3.

B BERE ()

— (&)
RIFBBE ST ERIE 27 5% 2 @R 1L &
X EFE A BRI AR RE A
FARBITHRKBM RS » A
EEYBEDRR -

—  REMEERSEREERE3

SR B &R R E 27 SR ERT
Z’K ﬁ L}\TEQ+EkﬁHﬁQ:

Z—TFE-H—HRLER:

— MARBREERESEKX
FENLHAREHERIR
FERKRET 2 - %
ﬁ%\hWﬁﬁﬁWFﬂ

BEAXE NS HARES
F“H&Q?ﬁﬁﬁﬁé

URE - BT ERARE
% B EERIBIRNE
WiE B B Rt 2 7 A E

g o
Ean

— h$ﬁl%£§K%%
HREESE RS
%A%%ﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ
ZREb R - TAEIRER
SR A FERER - W
BN - BEZERD
SRR OHE ©

HERM B REENEIRRERE
FTERIFE 27 R BE MR —E - &
FHT R AR AR A FOEFE AR
BITHAAKRER 2R 5 - hAEEET
BEHM -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

4.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing
and sale of decorative base paper products and printing
paper product in the PRC. Turnover represents the sales
value of goods sold less returns, discounts and value
added taxes and other sales taxes, which may be analysed
as follows:

AEETENPEERRERHERMHRR
EmMHRIBAER XY - EXHECE
EmEERMNBRRE 7 - BERREM
HER A OMET

2010 2009

—E-2F —ETNF

‘000 ‘000

Fr Fir

Decorative base paper products 45 617 R 4K E 1,825,455 1,307,243
Printing paper product EN il FA 48 & i 233,461 223,078
2,058,916 1,530,321

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes only
one customer with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue. In 2010, revenue from sales
of printing paper product to this customer amounted to
approximately RMB233,461,000 (2009: RMB223,078,000)
and all arose in the PRC. Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from this customer is set out in note
24(a).

AEBZERIM BAEBEETRSGZ
BEEH  RE—ZEAEERZER10% °
R-ZE—TF  BZERCHEESHRBAA
mZ WL A AR 233,461,000 L (==
THE: AR¥223,078,0007T) @ & E%E
FEES - WEFEAZEFTEERRF
15 - ERKIEE24() ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

5. OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 5. HiahE= R BB R
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr For
Other revenue Hith 2%
Bank interest income RITH BURA 2,212 3,977
Dividend income from listed securities EmBESHZBRBWA = 394
2,212 4,371
Other net loss Hitngs 835
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE - BEMZEESE
plant and equipment — 6
Net foreign exchange loss HNIE [E5 185 88 189 14
Net realised and unrealised losses on BRATEFAEBRMBEE
financial assets at fair value through B R AREEEE TR
profit or loss — 42
189 62
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. FKRBIADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BB AT AN E $0kR
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
F For
(a) Finance costs (a) MERE
Interest on financial liabilities not at SEE AT EF AR 2
fair value through profit or loss BAENE
— Interest on bank borrowings — RAEFREBEEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITEEF S = 4,168
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BIRKT(BEEEME
remuneration (note 8)) (BteE8))
Contributions to defined contribution TFE R TR RS 52 R
retirement plans 3,905 2,831
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LERHAMER 42,338 37,923
46,243 40,754

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS EEH + UAREZS])

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiary participates in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (“the Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiary is required to make contributions to the Scheme
at a fixed amount announced annually by the municipal
government. The municipal government is responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in
Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group and
administrated by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, both the Group and the employees are required
to make regular contributions to the MPF Scheme. The
Group is required to contribute an amount equivalent
to 5% of the employees’ relevant income to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the maximum level of relevant income
of HK$20,000 per month. Mandatory contributions to the
MPF Scheme are vested immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with the two
schemes referred to above beyond the contributions
described above.

BRBLAT R R (F)

RBFBEZABSE TRUER - FENME
RESHEM )T E RARZ EREFRAKEF
HEI(TFTED) - Bt - PEIME R RZARE
MR & F A2 R REBLAT 81 F it
Ko MBTAERNEKER Z2BEKE
Bff-

AEERBEESEHELBE ST ENEHIRE
ERBBRBREEEOIIER 2B S REEGME
AERFEI([RBESATE]) - BESTEIZ
BESAAEECZEESFAFE - BT
ABE - RiFBBSE - AEERHEEES
HATFELHRR - AEE 2 HFEHAER
EEBBIRAZ5%  LAAF 20,0008 L5
PR o MErEIMEL 2 R b1 H RN o

Bk E XAt mEE 8T 2 S EHRFRI - A&
= 45 L B A (5 BUAERE 2 ERR K
BRI EE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fir
(c) Other items (0 HfEE
Amortisation of lease prepayments TR ETE BRIE 341 341
Auditors’ remuneration ZERTE &
— audit services — FEithRE 1,001 881
— tax services — MIEARTS 66 50
Depreciation e 150,960 93,393
Impairment loss of property, Yz - BB KRG
plant and equipment BUEEE 4,137 =
Operating lease charges in respect of B REHEER
— leasehold land and properties — e R 4,944 3,967
— others — HAh 150 150
Sewage disposal expenses 55 362 132
Research and development costs 7 MR A 189 156
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7. HmEWBRAZAEH
STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HREWBZXRAMBHA
represents:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr For
Current tax — PRC corporate BRI — PR EFRESHR
income tax
Provision for the year REERE 58,017 47,607
Under-provision in respect of BAEFEREBTE
the prior year 450 —
58,467 47,607
() Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the (i) BERAEHESMNEBERIHS

Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong
Kong Profits Tax as the Group did not have
assessable profits subjected to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the year (2009: Nil).

Shandong Qunxing Paper Limited (“Shandong
Qunxing”) is a foreign investment enterprise
and has been granted certain tax relief
whereby it is fully exempted from PRC income
tax for the two years starting from 1 January
2007 to 31 December 2008, followed by a
50% reduction in the PRC income tax rate
for the three years from 1 January 2009 to
31 December 2011. The applicable tax rate
for Shandong Qunxing for the year ended 31
December 2010 is 12.5%.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT (Continued)

7. HEWBERAZHEHR(E)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a)

represents: (Continued)

REBRBERAMEHR - (&)

(b)

(iii)

(Continued)

In addition, the Group would be subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 5% if profits
generated by Shangdong Qunxing after 31
December 2007 were to be distributed. As
Shandong Qunxing is wholly owned by the
Company, the Company can control the
payments of dividends by Shangdong Qunxing
and the Company’s directors have confirmed
that it is unlikely that Shangdong Qunxing will
pay dividends in the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation between tax expense and

(iiiy (#%&)

gEoh WILRBEERBE-Z
ELrE+-_A=+—HItEE

A EBRE 2 s F A& F O R
BIJZN &= B B h L 12 70 3R 5% A
B -  ERARNRZERS
IWERBEE » AR A RIIEHL R
HERNZEE  MARAE
ERER IUEBEE D KA &
A RS RIRSRE S o

(b) BREABBHAEZHEMIEGHE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: Rz ¥R :
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNEF
‘000 ‘000
FrT Fr
Profit before taxation R 75 A A 455,973 371,694
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRI SR 2 m FI AT A B
calculated at the rates applicable to KHE2BRBRNRNEE
profit in the countries concerned 18 114,729 93,706
Tax effect of tax concession period MEERARZRETE (58,548) (49,040)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR R B S 2 B & 1,857 1,981
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBUA 2 B 52 (21) (103)
Under-provision in prior year BEFE DR 450 —
Tax effect of unused tax losses not PIERERIE B E’]ﬂiﬁ%mﬂi@i
recognised for deferred taxation R EEE 2 B2
purposes — 1,063
Actual tax expense ERBIERX 58,467 47,607
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B 35 AR M =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 RIBEB R aHEHZE 161 EFTHE 2 Z =B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: W
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE-_Z-ZF+-A=+—HLEFE
Basic
salaries,
allowances
and other  Contributions
benefits  to retirement
in kind benefit
Directors’ BEREHE scheme
fees EHR BHRER Bonuses Total
EZhe HuBYEA ST AL &%
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F Fr Fr F Fr
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Zhu Yu Guo KEBBL 627 — — — 627
Mr. Zhu Mo Qun RERRAE 627 — — — 627
Mr. Sun Zhen Shui FiRokE4s 313 — — — 313
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Sun Rui Fang Ensrt 63 — — — 63
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Zhao Wei HEEE 104 — — — 104
Mr. Wang Lu TEEE 104 — — - 104
Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong BRELE 157 — — — 157
Total Ch 1,995 — — — 1,995
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Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEME(E)
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE_ZZNF+_A=+—HILFE
Basic
salaries,
allowances
and other  Contributions
benefits to retirement
in kind benefit
Directors’ X - scheme
fees EE R RIRER Bonuses Total
EERE HeEWREA SR TEAT BF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr FIr FT Fr
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Zhu Yu Guo KEBEBL 634 291 — - 925
Mr. Zhu Mo Qun RERRAE 634 — — — 634
Mr. Sun Zhen Shui iRk E 317 — — — 317
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Sun Rui Fang FEimp Lt 63 — — — 63
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
Directors
Mr. Zhao Wei HELE 106 — — — 106
Mr. Wang Lu TEEE 106 — - - 106
Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong BRELE 158 — - - 158
Total CHI 2,018 291 — — 2,309

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the
Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals set out in note 9 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. There was no arrangement under which
a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

EAFE  AKESECHKENESHT
XHEImt AR ESHMA LR ERMAL
& AR S| R F MBEAEBSHAER/INARZ
REKERBERME - £ XFE - BB
LHANREEREXFREREEANE -
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B 35 AR M =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. BEHmMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEAGeTMALTFE=R(ZZEZTNF :
three (2009: three) are Directors whose emoluments are —HRINAEESE BHEZMERKMEsH
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in B HMWMA(ZZETNEF : WA )&xe 5
respect of the other two (2009: two) individuals are as AL ZBEEREMT ¢
follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
FiT Fr
Salaries and other emoluments e hEMMe 1,281 1,150
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL — —
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE T B 21 21
1,302 1,171
The emoluments of the two individuals (2009: two) with MAE(ZEENF : MB)&eH A 2
the highest emoluments are within the following band: SN FLATEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTThEF
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 AREZILE AR 1,000,000 7T 2 2
10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 10. AATEREFE AERGZF

THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB7,716,000 (2009:
RMB6,215,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB397,506,000 (2009: RMB324,087,000)
and the weighted average number of 1,057,594,300
ordinary shares (2009 (restated): 1,057,594,300) in issue
during the year after adjusting the outstanding number of
ordinary shares deemed to be issued as at the beginning
of the year as a result of the scrip dividend.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT

11.

KRB =T ARGGEE RN BEEE
AR®7,716,000(ZZTZENF : ARM
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BREF
BREFRF

HE-_TZ-TFE+-_A=+—RALEErE
BEEARZBR TR B AR B LB EA A
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Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 1. SBREFE)

Basic earnings per share (Continued) BREXRBR(Z)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZERZINEFIE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
‘000 ‘000

FrT Fr
(restated)

(&E7%)

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—BEBITETRRK 1,032,800 1,032,800

Effect of scrip dividend issued (note) BITUARRAR B D &2 8 (f152) 24,794 24,794

Weighted average number of ordinary R+ A=+—BEBR2ZN

shares at 31 December REF B 1,057,594 1,057,594

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during RERFEANRRG W EELTAFEETE

the years presented and, therefore, diluted earnings per ZEBE  MWESYGREEAF o

share is not presented.

Note: On 5 May 2010, the Board resolved to recommend fifat - MBS FRATRH EFT€ZREZ
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 REHE_ZT—TF+_A=1+—HItZ
December 2010 wholly in scrip form. 24,794,300 shares REARR S+ 2EHAUBRR B ZF IR ©
were issued on 8 June 2010. The basic earnings per share 24,794,300 KD IR = —ZF AN
for the year ended 31 December 2009 have been restated HET #E_ZZAF+A=+—H
as the scrip shares are treated as if the issue had occurred IFFEEZEBRERRMEET - BEIAR
as at 1 January 2009. REBROERENR_TEZNF—A—HE

BT -

SEGMENT REPORTING 12. 2EW2H

The Group operates in a single business segment, the
manufacturing and trading of decorative base paper
products and printing paper product in the PRC. The
Group's chief operating decision maker regards and
manages the Group based on the information of this
single business segment, for the purposes of assessing
performance and making decisions about operating
matters. Accordingly, no segmental analysis is presented.
All of the Group’s revenues are generated in the PRC and
substantially all of the Group’s assets are located in the
PRC and therefore no geographical segment information
has been disclosed.

REEZEBENBE—FKBOH - AESE
EUEREEEMRAERRIBAKER °
REBITERERKEREE B0
ZERERREEAEE  BEHEHLES

HZEBRAELIRE « Bt - REEN &
2D EAHT - HRAEE 2 EHKRARE F
B - MBREH 2 EEMLRFE - Bt
5 B0 AR B [ ) BOE K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥%¥- BERRZRE
(@) The Group (a) AKEH
Furniture
and fixtures
and computer
Leasehold Plant and Motor  equipment
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles FUREE Total
B BEXE  BEREE A8 REMRE At
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
7z iz 77 77 7 7z
Cost: A
At 1 January 2009 H-EENE-A-B 62,113 191 739,282 2,406 5,030 809,322
Additions AE = 295 14518 109 1127 16,049
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEBERTR(H:215)

(note 15) 246,737 — 634,989 — — 881,726
Disposals irk - (490) = = 8 (498)
Exchange adjustments B = (1) = = (1) 2)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+-R=1-H 308,850 295 1,388,789 2,515 6,148 1,706,597
At 1 January 2010 RZT-%45-7-H 308,850 295 1,388,789 2,515 6,148 1,706,597
Additions AE = = 2,239 = 195 2434
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEBEERTR(A:215)

(note 15) 292,476 — 510,257 — — 802,733
Exchange adjustments [ — 6) - = (5 (11)
At 31 December 2010 R-B-ZE+ZA=1-H 601,326 289 1,901,285 2515 6338 2,511,753

Accumulated depreciation and ZiHTERAE -

impairment:

At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-A 6,526 256 238,286 799 2,309 248,176
Charge for the year REEHE 2,500 24 89917 233 501 93,393
Written back on disposals HERERD — (490) — — @) (492)
M\ Deember 009 RITEARIZASHR s B Ml s 3o
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-ZF-f-A 9,026 8 328,203 1,032 2,808 31,077
Charge for the year REENE 9,695 97 140,457 198 513 150,960
Impairment loss HEEE 2,879 = 1,258 = = 4137
ASDecember 2000 RR-SEfSASTR JAWN05 e B0 33 e
Net book value: BEFE:

At 31 December 2010 RZF-FE+-A=1-B 579,726 184 1,431,367 1,285 3,017 2,015,579
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE+-R=1-H 299,824 287 1,060,586 1483 3340 1,365,520
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B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13.

(a)

The Group (Continued)

All of the Group’s buildings and plant and
machinery are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group made a
prepayment of RMB24,029,000 (2009: RMB60,780,000)
to acquire plant and machinery.

Impairment loss

During the year 31 December 2010, an impairment
loss was made for a production line due to
technological obsolescence. The Group assessed
the recoverable amount of this production line
and as a result the remaining carrying amount
of the production line was written down by
RMB4,137,000. The estimate of recoverable amount
was based on the value in use of the production line
to the Group.

13.

M BERRE(E)

(a)

FEE(E)

AEBERHET - WEREIILR
o

R-BE—FTF+-_A=+—H K&
B 78 i+ A R ¥ 24,029,000 0 (==
NE: AR ¥60,780,000 7T
R R has o

N

BEAA

BE—_ZT-—ZTHE+_fF=+—HItHF
B ANEBBREMEEN S —LE
BRIERERBE AEBEFZZEERS
2R B S ERHERTFEEEAR
# 4,137,000 2 B (B 2 4F  [HEH AT Uk
ESEERBEEESRYASE 2 F
FREEMEE -
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B HRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

13.

The Company

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13. #1% - BERRE(E)

(b) A2F

Furniture
and fixtures
and computer

Leasehold equipment
improvements MREE Total
HEH£E REKRE A%
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
For FIr Fr
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2009 R-ZBZhE—F—H 491 476 967
Additions e 295 85 380
Disposals HE (490) (8) (498)
Exchange adjustments fE 5, = (1) — (1)
At 31 December 2009 RZZETNF+=A
=+—H 295 553 848
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—-ZF—-H—H 295 553 848
Additions e — 6 6
Exchange adjustments BE KRB (6) (5) (11)
At 31 December 2010 R=ZB—ZF+=A
=+—H 289 554 843
Accumulated depreciation: ;i?l'?ﬁé 3
At 1 January 2009 —ETAF—A—H 256 115 371
Charge for the year ZKEE%% 242 141 383
Written back on disposals i & B ¢ ] (490) (2) (492)
At 31 December 2009 RZZZNF+=A
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, =ft-8 & 254 20
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-—T&—F—H 8 254 262
Charge for the year KEEE 97 136 233
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE-ZF+=H
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, =t-B8 15 3% 4%
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2010 R=ZE-ZF+=H
Eqr=[8 184 164 348
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEZNFE+_A
=+—H 287 299 586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))
14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RMEARZER

The Company

PN
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNEF
‘000 ‘000
FrT o
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMARG « REAE 996 996
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BB A RIFRIA 1,189,652 1,219,737
1,190,648 1,220,733
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest EWHMBEARzRIBRERT 28 RER
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion EENRE - EFRREWIE A R 2 FIEH
of the directors, the amounts due from subsidiaries will TRERN TG BAREE T @ A NEE - R
not be repaid within twelve months from the end of WK KR AT RIERED o
the reporting period and are, therefore, shown in the
statement of financial position as non-current.
Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 are set RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—HHREBRARZF
out below: BEIAT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued and equity attributable
Name of company establishment fully paid up capital to the Company Principal activities
NEER HRAL/ Rt  BROREERAHE RAFEGERB AL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B %
Double Nation Limited (“Double Nation") BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding
ARRENHS 100 RERAEE 1 £ R RERR
Best Known Group Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of — 100%  Investment holding
EEREERAR B0 HK$1 each RERR
100 REREE 1 BT R
Shandong Qunxing Paper Limited* PRC RMB1,294,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
WRHEBZARAR HE AR 1,294,000,0007C decorative base paper
products and printing paper
product
SEREERRAERREA
AgER
* This entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established * ZEBANTRKZINEBERE -

in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR M =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. H#EIR
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—2-2F —TZNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr For
At 1 January R—H—H 296,911 316,060
Additions NG 759,700 862,577
Transfer to property, plant and equipment — EEZE¥ ¥ - FE KR E
(note 13) (Btet 13) (802,733) (881,726)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 253,878 296,911
Construction in progress comprises costs incurred on FRIEBRERNSBREHRHATHRZIEF
buildings and plant and machinery not yet completed at ERE MR EA 2N -
the end of the respective reporting period.
16. LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16. HEFEMNRE
The Group KEE
‘000
For
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and RZZEZNF—HA—HB ZFTTh+=A
31 December 2010 =t—BRZZE-—Z+=-A=+—H 15,646
Accumulated amortisation: E-ig o
At 1 January 2009 R=ZEETN—H—H 496
Charge for the year N EH 5 341
il becember 2oy Mewedr=AETEd &
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—LT—H—H 837
Charge for the year NG S 5H 341
sl Desswber 00O R-®_®f-A=t-R  .......M78
Net book value: SRENFHE ¢
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZEA+=A=1+—8H 14,809
At 31 December 2010 H=-ZT—-Z+=-HA=+—H 14,468

Lease prepayments represent the cost of the land use

rights in the PRC, which expire in 2053.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

17. PREPAYMENT FOR FLOOD PREVENTION EXPENSES 17. BB FEM IR
On 11 June 2010, a prepayment amounting to RZZE—ZTFA+—H APBFHEEL
RMB42,500,000 was made for the flood prevention HEARBNZAEME LIRS BBARK
expenses charged for a period of 50 years up to 2059. 42,500,0007C * RIEFEMS0F R = F
Amortisation of the prepayment for flood prevention ANFER o TERPIER S 2 8 HR 505
expenses is being charged to profit or loss on a straight- B B AR AtEsR ©

line basis over 50 years.
18. INVENTORIES 18. #E

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) EREFBARARAZFEERSR :
position comprise:

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—B-=F —ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Tor
Raw materials and consumables R EL K H e am 33,372 23,336
Finished goods SURK oh 15,590 13,998
48,962 37,334
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) HLEEZHERABMLIZEESESN
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as W
follows:
The Group
REE
2010 2009
—E2-2F —TTNF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 1,539,131 1,105,517
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B HRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EWREZRAREMmEKRE
The Group The Company
rEE ENE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENE —E-FF —EBENF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr T Fir
Trade receivables FEUR B 5 8RR 97,503 29,520 — —
Prepayments, deposits and FEFKIE - e K&
other receivables H A e R IE 1,228 2,737 378 397
Other tax recoverable H b BT Ui [ 5 18 12,557 40,150 — —
111,288 72,407 378 397
The amount of prepayments, deposits and other TEFRIE ~ e REAM KGRI 2 @ EEE
receivables includes the current portion of RMB850,000 BHEE 17 FratTE S R S R FEE D 2 A
relating to the prepayment for flood prevention expenses R# 850,000 7T °

as referred to in note 17.

All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered FERKE ZERBRAR —FABRAH
or recognised as an expense within one year. % e

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDMT

Included in trade and other receivables are trade BIEERKE 5 8RR & E B U R IE

receivables with the following ageing analysis as of ZEWE S RBEBRRERAR KRS
the end of the reporting period: LT

The Group
rEE

2010 2009

—E2-=F —ZEENF

‘000 ‘000

Fr Fir

Current BN & 93,802 27,630

Less than one month past due B R —1{E A 3,701 1,890

97,503 29,520
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

119,

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EWESRAREENREE)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZRIBE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables EWE ZRFM = - BEEEER
are recorded using an allowance account unless the REEER TUARRS: - BRIEAREEBEE
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is H & Yol 3% & ;I8 2 AT ge MEARR - Al
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written BERAZBEEESEZEREKRE ZK
off against trade receivables directly (see note 2(i)). KA (RFEE 23)) ©
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired 8 A 28 HA SRl B 2 JE WG IB T B i &
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there LB P - HA TR 2 R GREC R o
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired EaiERREZERHKIBENE@AE
relate to a number of independent customers that TRIRP  HEAEEZAHELHE
have a good track record with the Group. Based Rif - RIBBELR  AREPZE
on past experience, management believes that no EEHEWARNRERNES  HRAER
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of BORHKOE - WAEEREHAE
these balances as there has not been a significant R ERE ANEBEUWHZSERTS
change in credit quality and the balances are still BEMERG -
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 200 RERBEEZEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BHeLRSEEVMBE:
The Group The Company
rEME FN/NE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTHNEF ZEB-BF —TThHF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr Fr Fir
Deposits with banks RITIFK 69,945 58,076 41,719 42,663
Cash at bank and other HRIT R EM S mE
financial institutions and ZEREFERE
cash in hand 377,818 624,688 34,313 41,282
Cash and cash equivalents in ~ REIFSARR ZIRE
the statement of financial KB EEEY
position 447,763 682,764 76,032 83,945
Cash and cash equivalents in ~ REGEBERERY
the consolidated cash flow ReRBELEEY
statement 447,763 682,764

As at 31 December 2010, cash in hand and cash
at banks in the PRC included in the cash and cash
equivalents above amounted to RMB341,710,000
(2009: RMB567,124,000). Remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

RZE-—ZFTF+-A=+—H0" F
SHESRTFERARFPREZRITERE
FLEORERRESZEMWAARKE
341,710,000 L (ZZEZNF : ARK
567,124,000 7T) ° #&FRIELE L F Bl /8
A BT He1T 2 JNE B Bl FTBR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 20 BERELEEY(E)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRATRMEREEEREEZRESE
generated from operations: R
2010 2009
—E-=F —EThF
Note ‘000 ‘000
Bt et Fr Fir
Profit before taxation B B BT A 455,973 371,694
Adjustments for: BA T EIAFEE
Amortisation of lease T ETE IR
prepayments 6(c) 341 341
Amortisation of prepayment for B At A S TR R IR B 5H
flood prevention expenses 425 —
Depreciation TE 6(c) 150,960 93,393
Impairment of property, plant Y% - WE REERE
and equipment 6(c) 4,137 —
Finance costs BhE A A 6(a) = 4,168
Interest income FLEYA 5 (2,212) (3,977)
Dividend income ISR ON 5 = (394)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BB R&E
plant and equipment R 5 = 6
Net realised and unrealised losses — 1ZAF(EzF Az 2 B
on financial assets at fair value BEDEHRAEEES
through profit or loss 555 5 = 42
Foreign exchange loss HNEE 518 359 116
Changes in working capital: gBERE:
(Increase)/decrease in FEOEM)
inventories (11,628) 6,288
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEUE 5 HR 30 B E A IR
other receivables RIB(8AN) R (65,624) 6,587
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BB SRR R EARES
other payables I, ) 32,534 (46,219)
Cash generated from operations BEEBEEAZR® 565,265 432,045
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ERESRERRHEMEMRE
The Group The Company
AEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%F -TINF —T-BF -—TENSF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
FT For Fr Fir
Trade payables FEFTE SRR 75,596 45,529 — —
Other payables and accruals Hth FET RIB R TR B A 11,444 12,471 1,253 1,260
87,040 58,000 1,253 1,260
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period. The credit period granted by suppliers
generally is not more than 30 days.

21. ENESRAREMENKEAGE)

BEERNESRRAREMEMERIETZ
ENEZERFINBEHRZEEDTAOT -
ERERRT2EEH—RTZRN308 -

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
FrT o
Due within 30 days 30 B W E & 75,596 45,529

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

22. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

F R 55 B B At RT3 —
PN -

22. HFEMBRRRAZHAED

() HEMBMRRAZEEBIBERER

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEENF
‘000 ‘000
Fr For
Provision for PRC income tax for the year ARNEE DR Z PEFERH 58,017 47,607
PRC income tax paid B 2R BEE (45,177) (37,259)
12,840 10,348
Balance of PRC income tax relating to BEFE R BRATER AL
prior years 9,868 9,868
Income tax payable e AT SR 22,708 20,216

Annual Report 2010 F#§

105



106

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

22.

(b)

(o)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 2(0), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB13,262,840 (2009: RMB17,035,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2010, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiary amounted to RMB1,019,809,000 (2009:
RMB654,751,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB50,990,000 (2009: RMB32,738,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
this subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that retained profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT

22.

mEMBRRRAZAEH(E)

(b)

(9)

RBERZBELERIREE

BRI 20002 BT K XEH
VEBRRABZRAHEBEARE
13,262,840 (=TT NF : AR
17,035,000 7T ) EE 4 2 IR IEFR I & EE
REREHBHEAEERRERT
K F] BE BE A R R FE R Ui A1) F] A 1B R
MEBERE - BEBRTRE  REE
BB o

RBBRZIBELERIAEE

RZE—ZTF+_A=+—H B
FEIME A F 2 Ry B AE 2 =
A AR 1,019,809,000 (= EF
HE: AR¥654,751,0007T ) ° &
RARREH L EW B A 6 2 R E K
xK - BEBERA R 2 %5 H & i #
TFHE - WMAERARDE L SR
FaAREZHMNIBREARE
50,990,000 L(ZZEZT NLF : AR
32,738,000 7)) AIEEFIHA & ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

23.

(a)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23. BEX - RFERRE
Movements in components of equity (a) MHEREEEF
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGARDSHEZENHEER
closing balances of each component of the Group’s ERZHERENGEERZEFHRNA -
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RNAFERERIEE FYEFELR S
statement of changes in equity. Details of the BFBWT
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company AT
Retained
profits/
(Accumulated
Share Share Exchange losses)
capital premium reserve Bk, Total
A& i RE ik (REER) fi
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
7 7 N L L
Balance at 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A—-H
pa 100258 1474812 (157,824) 2073 1419519
Changes in equity for 2009: “IENFRERED
Loss for the year KEEER — — - (6,215) (6,215)
Other comprehensive income i 2EYE — = 2,07m) — (2,07)
Total comprehensive income PAkRET 100,258 1,474,812 (159,895) (3,942) 1,411,233
Dividends approved in respect of the ~ #tfE F—FERE
previous year — (76,990) — — (76,990)
Dividends declared in respect of REERERRE
the current year — (29,842) - — (29,842)
Balance at 31 December 2009 and ~ R=ZEhE
1 January 2010 tZA=+-HRK=%
—2E-f-H2kH 100,258 1,367,980 (159,895) (3,942) 1,304,401
Changes in equity for 2010: E-ZEERSH:
Loss for the year rEEFR = = = (7,716) (7,716)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EWE — — (30,532) — (30,532)
Total comprehensive income 2HARREE 100,258 1,367,980 (190,427) (11,658) 1,266,153
Dividend issued in respect of BTL-FERE
previous year — (67,385) - — (67,385)
Shares issued in respect of scrip RTE-FERERH
dividend of previous year 2,169 65,216 — — 67,385
Balance at 31 December 2010 i 3:3
+ZB=t-Az&H 102,427 1,365,811 (190,427) (11,658) 1,266,153

Annual Report 2010 F#§

107



108

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

23. BX - #EERE(E)

(b) Authorised and issued share capital (b) ZEEREBITRAE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEENEF
Number Number
of shares of shares
BAEE EE4E
(’000) ‘000 ('000) ‘000
(FR&) FT (FAE) +T
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of SHREEO0. 1B
HK$0.1 each 2 EEAR 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000

Ordinary shares issued and BRTRHEAZE

fully paid: B :
At 1 January n—H—H 1,032,800 100,258 1,032,800 100,258
Shares issued under scrip BIIRE

dividend (note) i tn (B1at) 24,794 2,169 — —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 1,057,594 102,427 1,032,800 100,258
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERIEAE A RKEAETIR 2R

dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Note: Shares issued under scrip dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2009 wholly in scrip form equivalent to HK7.403
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB6.525 cents)
per ordinary share to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on 5 May 2010, totalling of HK$76,458,000
(equivalent to RMB67,385,000).

For the purpose of calculating the number of scrip
shares allotted in respect of the final dividend in
2009, the market value of the scrip dividend was
HK$3.0837, which was the average closing price
of the Company’s share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding 5 May 2010, less a discount
of 5% and rounding such figure to four decimal
places.
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RZHHIRE - RARRHRTEEM
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[

Brat: BITRERD

EEEFREBANR T —ZTFA
ARBRIADRBRAMEZ
BREREZEHE-_ZTTNEF+_-A
=+—HIEZ KRS - Fi%7.403
BILGEERHOARKE6.5255) * &
HERAUNBREZARNIEN - B8
¥ /76,458,000 T(HAE R L A
K% 67,385,000 7T) °
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(RIS EEH + UAREZS])

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

23.

(b) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

On 8 June 2010, the Company issued and allotted
24,794,300 of shares in scrip form to shareholders
totalling of HK$76,458,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB67,385,000), out of which
RMB2,169,000 was recorded in share capital and
RMB65,216,000 was recorded in share premium.
These shares rank pari passu with the existing shares
of the Company in all aspects.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account
is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium may also be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, a final dividend of
RMB67,385,000 (2009: RMB76,990,000) in
respect of the previous year was paid out from
the share premium account. During the year
ended 31 December 2009, an interim dividend
of RMB29,842,000 in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2009 (2010: Nil) was paid
out from the share premium account.

Surplus reserves

Transfers from retained profits to the surplus
reserves were made in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiary incorporated in the PRC and were
approved by its board of directors.

The PRC subsidiary is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit, as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the surplus reserves until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

23.

'R RERKRE(E)

(b) ZEEREBBITRAE)

Bist: (&)

RZZE—ZFFANB ' ARAMA
fi% R 31T R BL 35 24,794,300 R X B
BX 1D - 48 % %8 76,458,000 7T (48
L% AR #67,385,0007T) @ H
R AR 2,169,000 7T 58 AR -
A B #65,216,000 7T 2 A IR 12 )%
B ZERMEARRT ZEHARMD
FEEFEAER RSO -

() RBEMHEREW

(i)

(ii)

B3 sE

BIBEFEHES QR BHE
BRADKFTAARBRRE  H#
BREEZSEKBREZB®E K
REIBHEENINER & %
BREFIHBI M ZEER - &
1B B INA] AR R AR T R 5
Ke RBE-_ZT—ZTF+_A
=t+t—HALtEE F—FEZ
XHE AR B A R #67,385,000
T(ZE2EENLF: AR
76,990,000 7T ) B H B& 17 44 B
BRPIRE - RBE-ZThF
+—A=+—BLEE B
E_ZZTNhF+_A=+—
HEFEZHFHREARK
29,842,000 T(= T — & 4 ¢
) BRI S BRRPIRE -

BERIFE

AREBEREA BT ER RO
R A B AN R B 5 o B RE A K S
ZHBRAR 2 ARERZAAE
BERafBEasnE  1LE
EREESHE -

FENEQRERERE S
A ROE IR AT 2 10% 85 5
ZEBEE ERuHELE
BEWTME R 250% A Ik -
RNEBBE R KRR D IRRK S8
PE{E S REHS -
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23.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 23. BX - #EERE(E)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (c) MEEMEERBEHNE)
(iii) Exchange reserve (iii) EZFE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign ERFERERERBEIEIINE
exchange differences arising from the Bz BmERMESEZPTAE
translation of the financial statements of HER - WARRMEE2(r) ez
operations outside the PRC which are dealt SEBRERE -
with in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(r).
(iv) Distributability of reserves (iv) THR7REE
At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount RZE—ZFF+_A=+—H
of reserves available for distribution to equity AESRFARAEETA A
shareholders of the Company, including ZIRERRE  BREAENRTE23()
the distributable amounts disclosed in note (WVFMEBEz2AsEREBEAAR
23(c)(i) was RMB1,354,153,000 (2009: #1,354,153,000T ( — 2=
RMB1,364,038,000). LF - AR #1,364,038,000
T ) e
(d) Dividends (d) KE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) EIFREGRZLFEAFEE
of the Company attributable to the year 1R E
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
SET Fir
Interim dividend declared and paid EERREKNZBE=EE
of HK3.277 cents per ordinary NE+=—A=+—HLHEF
share (equivalent to approximately B2 EERE AR
RMB2.889 cents) for the year ended  3.277 81l (HEZERL
31 December 2009 AR¥2.889%) = 29,842
Final dividend proposed after the end ~ RREHIREZ IR 2 K
of the reporting period of HK8.633 REEREER8.633/
cents (equivalent to approximately (RSN AR 7.517
RMB7.517 cents) per ordinary share D) ZZETNE : BRE
(2009: HK7.403 cents per ordinary B 7.403 7810
share, equivalent to approximately HERKARE6.5255)
RMB6.525 cents) 119,252 67,385
Special dividend proposed after the RS BRIk 5 2 5 A
end of the reporting period of %2 RREmAR 3 L
HK3 cents (equivalent to (BEROARK
approximately RMB2.612 cents) 2.6125)
per ordinary share (2009: Nil) ZEENF &) 41,442 =
160,694 97,227

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT
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(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

23.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 23. BX - RERRE(E)
(d) Dividends (Continued) d) KRE(#ZE)

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) EBHRERAAEREEAFEE

of the Company attributable to the year HRE (&)

(Continued)

The Board resolved to recommend the EXg@REBRAR_T——
payment of a final dividend for the year ended FRATNBRINEARGRE
31 December 2010 of HK8.633 cents (2009: EMzBERRERE_ZT—F
HK7.403 cents wholly in scrip form) and a F+ZHA=+— E¢¢F§*23E
special cash dividend of HK3 cents (2009: HK H B FR8.633B (=TS
Nil cents) per ordinary share to shareholders JE 74038 1L) RFRIR &
whose names appear on the register of EERETARRBRIBW Z=ZZZ
members of the Company on 18 May 2011. NE - T - R ATEEN
Shareholders may elect to receive the final R EB D I8 ¢ 7 = WEL K HA
dividend in scrip form or in cash form. RS e

The final dividend and special cash dividend RS HREERIRMT 2 KE
proposed after the end of the reporting period f% B K45 Bl 3R € B B R TR
have not been recognised as liabilities at the RWERRZBE -

end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) BHRNERAGRZHFEAL—E
of the Company attributable to the BFEEEWLRE ERFAH#M
previous financial year, approved and paid /8 R RAT
during the year

2010 2009
—E—ZF ZETNF
‘000 ‘000
FrT o
Final dividend in respect of the BREA#ERIRSZ E
previous financial year, approved —RFERARES
and paid during the year, of A% @ A% 7.403 7L
HK7.403 cents (equivalent to (HRERH AR 6.525
approximately RMB6.525 cents) 2)  EEURBRGD
per ordinary share wholly in scrip FERRNA(ZZZTNF
form (2009: HK8.45 cents per AR ERAR 8.45 B IL LA
ordinary share wholly in cash WeRIRA) (FBER
form) (equivalent to approximately AR T.455)
RMB7.45 cents) 67,385 76,990
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BFZHIES » AARBZS)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

23.

24.

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of gearing ratio, which is calculated as the Group’s
total bank borrowings over the Group's total assets.
The Group has not engaged in any bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2009 and 2010.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit,

liquidity, interest rate, business,

commodity price and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and deposits with banks.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIS EEH + UAREZS])

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

24.

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 10 to 30 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not collect collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 15% (2009: 37%) and 35% (2009: 59%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with financial institutions with
sound credit rating. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not provide any financial guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

24.

BEEAREERAREE)

(a)

FERR(E)

HEREZERMES @ AEBEEK
iBiE— Eﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁkﬁh
Bilfh - WETHETRELPBES
EIEAFRIE 2 FE 2 IR B 32 B
NEEBIRFZAEBERREFRE
B ZICERE - ZSRKE S
BRR DR BEEZAHEI10E30H AE
% & FRA TE & B AT ] H (5 B AT 4%
BB ERTAERERS
7 55 B N 4 1) R LSO R g o

$¢l2;ﬁ REEARPZTR
S TR 2 ﬁ#%ﬁ@%Zw%&
BxR ALEAEESFREREER
REBSRAEBLRFREHE - R
WEPRR  XEEHARARAERFZ
BUREBSERD L AEEERE S
BT 15% (ZEFHFE  37%)
5 35% (ZZZNEF : 59%) °

AEBEGFHRRASHNEBRIEETR
ZeREBLREREEERR - EER
ZEESSEET& Ai@%‘éﬁﬂ
AR HF T EEITEEME -

EREERREGRAMBERARRAZ

iwﬂé‘}zzﬁﬁﬁﬁ 7N & [ 7 AR i
ERSAKEEGREERR 2 RE
& e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 2= Y =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

24.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24, BIBEBEBRRAFEE)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) HEBELE
Individual operating entities within the Group SEANBEYVKEEREREEAG R
are responsible for their own cash management, CERE PERESAKZEHESE
including the short term investment of cash NRESEFUNENBERESR K
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected EENELEER - RIAEE AT
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent EEgE AEBZHREZEE
company’s board when the borrowings exceed RERKEGRARDESENIEHZ
certain predetermined levels of authority. The BfE SAEBEHERETEESZ
Group's policy is to ensure, as far as possible, that BB EIEE -
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
The following table show the remaining contractual TRAFRNEERRERARR TZH
maturities at the end of the reporting period of HHREZRBHFERARAIZEHE
the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, & DEREGARURBESR=Z(BE
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash RERNFEAE 2 BAFE) RAEE
flows and the earliest date the Group and the NEN/NCIVELSE vk s &N =)
Company can be required to pay:
The Group rEH
2010 2009
“B-B% ZEENE
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BAAMAERZBE SR BANMARRZR SR
Carrying Carrying
Within 1 year amount at  Within 1 year amount at
or on demand Total 31 Dec  oron demand Total 31 Dec
Rt=A W+=A
—ERg Er=fZ —ERg =t+-Bz
RER CH REfE REK B RAE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr T Fr Fr
Trade and other payables B E S8R
B ERFIE (87,040) (87,040) (87,040) (58,000) (58,000) (58,000)

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited 2 £ 4 %= RAR AT
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(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

24.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 24, HBEBREERAFEE)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REESEER(E)
The Company Y|
2010 2009
e =i
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BHTAMARR 2R R BiIAmAME RS R
Carrying Carrying
Within 1 year amount at  Within 1 year amount at
or on demand Total 31 Dec  or on demand Total 31 Dec
B“t=A ®"+=A
-ERg Sr=[12 —ERY Er=E2Z
REX CH REE REX B REE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
fr Fr Fr FIT Fr
Other payables and EthENFERE
accruals RBH (1,253) (1,253) (1,253) (1,260) (1,260) (1,260)
(c) Interest rate risk () RIZER
The Group does not have any interest bearing RNZEENFR_T—ZFTF+=A
borrowings at 31 December 2009 and 2010 that =t+—H AEETWEAENSAEEH
would expose the Group to interest rate risk. EEFERR ZFTEBEE o
(d) Business risk (d) ZEFKRE

The Group's sales of printing paper product are
principally to one customer. Although the Group
has entered into a co-operative agreement with
this customer, there can be no assurance that
this customer will continue to purchase from the
Group as and when needed. In the event that this
customer ceased purchasing printing paper product
from the Group and the Group could not secure
orders from other customers, the Group’s turnover
and profitability would be adversely affected.

AEEERR—BEPHE DR AR
Em BEAREERZATPAIL
BIEWE - ERBEERN T ZR IR
FPH#@@EmALERE - fMitEr,P T
BRAAEERBEORBEER  mA
SHEAEAEME PRSI E @ Al
HAREE 2 2ERBRANEENEKRT
M -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIHZEEH + UAREZS])

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(Continued)

24.

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Business risk (Continued)

The Group’s purchases of raw materials are
primarily from several major suppliers. The Group
has a certain concentration of business risk as 65%
(2009: 67%) of the total purchases were from the
Group’s five largest suppliers. If the Group could
not purchase adequate quantities of materials from
these suppliers and failed to identify alternative
sources, the Group’s turnover and profitability could
be adversely affected.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production
of the Group’s products include wood pulp and
titanium dioxide powder. The Group is exposed to
fluctuations in the prices of wood pulp and titanium
dioxide powder which are influenced by global as
well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the price of wood pulp and titanium
dioxide powder could adversely affect the Group's
financial performance. The Group historically has not
entered into any commodity derivative instruments
to hedge the potential commodity price changes.

Foreign currency risk

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and the
Group conducts its business transactions principally
in Renminbi, the exchange rate risk of the Group is
not significant and the Group does not employ any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Fair values

As stated in note 14, the balances with subsidiaries
are interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
Given these terms it is not meaningful to disclose
their fair values.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited B E& ¥ ZERER AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S 2% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))
25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 25.

(a) Operating leases

At 31 December 2010, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating

AERBAREE
(a) KEHEE

R-ZF-—FF+-_A=1t—80" RE
THHEZLLHERERRENZK

leases are payable as follows: EHEEBRERBAT -
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF "ZTTHNF ZZE-FTF "ZTNF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr FrT o
Within one year —FR 5,523 4,484 447 341
After one year but within —FREEAFRA

five years 13,064 11,701 372 683
After five years FENE 125,178 86,350 — —
143,765 102,535 819 1,024

The Group is the lessee in respect of leasehold land
and properties held under operating leases. The
leases run for an initial period of two to fifty years,
with an option to renew the leases upon expiry
when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments for
the leasehold land situated in PRC are renegotiated
every five years to reflect market rentals. None of
the lease includes contingent rentals.

(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December

2010 not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

AEBEAUREHERABRELHEYE
ZEMEA ZEFHRE-—RNTBHP_=R+
F - WA RN EERREEREETSNER
PRAGR - X B2 HE L S A FEH
R URRERZMISHEE - EEED
BREFIAEE -

(b)

BAREE

RZE—ZF+-_A=+—HBHKE
i BRI B Rk A L B 2 B AR
BT

The Group
REME

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
SEz For
Contracted for SEES) 312,760 150,220
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERRTL — 40,000
312,760 190,220

As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group was
committed to certain construction contracts for the
acquisition of plant and machinery and buildings.

RZZEZNFR_FT—ZFTF+_A
=+—B AEBAEETHEERE
Was MYFEZEREL -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIHZEEH + UAREZS])

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

25.

26.

(o)

Environmental contingencies

To date, the Group has not incurred any significant
expenditure for environmental remediation and
is currently not involved in any environmental
remediation. As such, the Group has not accrued
any amounts for environmental remediation
relating to its operations. Under existing legislation,
management believes that there are no probable
liabilities that could have a material adverse effect
on the financial position or operating results of the
Group. The PRC government, however, has moved,
and may move further towards more rigorous
enforcement of applicable laws, and towards
the adoption of more stringent environmental
standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to
considerable uncertainties which affect the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate cost of remediation
efforts. These uncertainties include (i) the exact
nature and extent of the contamination, (ii) the
extent of required clean up efforts, (iii) varying costs
of alternative remediation strategies, (iv) changes
in environmental remediation requirements and
(v) the identification of new remediation sites. The
amount of such future cost is indeterminable due to
such factors as the unknown magnitude of possible
contamination and the unknown timing and extent
of the corrective actions that may be required.
Accordingly, the outcome of environmental liabilities
under proposed or future environmental legislation
cannot reasonably be estimated at present and
could be material.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010,
transactions with the following party are considered to be
related party transactions:

Name of related party

BRELEE S

Relationship

25.

26.

AERBAREE

(c)

BRRNAIEE

2% ARBYRARFEERBEE
EEMERNX L - RELED MR
RBEEEMH - Bt AEERBE
EARBER CRREEFRENR
B BERITEMT EEEBMRESS
AT A] BEH AN SR B BA IS AR SR
LEXEEERAEPEZAE - A
TEBRNELLBAIGE—FEEE
REBERZERZEZRMRBRERE -
RRABZIBERAZERA > AIPE
REBGFHIRREERERAR S -
BEAEREREEG) SR 2EREE
TR ¢ (i) PrRBRTIEZIZE ¢ (iii)
EREMIER KA  (VRREBEER
K2BIE R(v)ERTEZERIRR
[BE 2B - MNATRERAISRZTR
JZ 70 P 75 BRER 2 8 S e 2 FE 1) s
MIZEFE R RN AREE - FH U SRR
EARRAEZELNBERZEHE W
EXERAAEEARZZEP 2K
ZIRBREERHE TR EHAEIRR
THZBE MEBABRANETOIE
* o

EABESRS
BE-TENFR-T-BF+-A=+-

BILEE  EERRTINRAR/AKE A

7

Shandong Changxing Group Limited
(“SD Changxing”) *
WRREEBEARAA(ILERKRE D)

*

The English translation of the company name is for
reference only. The official name of this company is in
Chinese.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited B E& ¥ ZERER AT

Effectively 55% owned by Dr. Zhu Yu Guo, 30% by Mr. Zhu Mo
Qun and 15% by Ms. Sun Rui Fang, the Directors

EFEREEEL  RBHEERERS L LD ERERS5% -
30% K 15% #Ez=
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26, EXBEAIRZ(E)
(Continued)
(a) Recurring transaction (a) REMERS
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
‘000 ‘000
Fir Fr
Lease of leasehold land and MUAT—HEBEE LR
properties from: E
— SD Changxing — UERE 2,270 1,335
The Directors of the Company are of the opinion RRREERA LABEERRS
that the above related party transaction was RIE— R EEREREEBFBIEF
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the LT o

ordinary course of business.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEEASME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEFFESEAB Z2ME (BIFME
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s SHBBRENARAIEZTZME KW
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the HIOMBRBEENE TR FHMES 2
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as &) T :
follows:
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ZEENF
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fir
Short-term employee benefits EEEEREN 3,675 4,147
Contribution to defined contribution ERHFGRAR SR
retirement plans 50 46
3,725 4,193
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see M@ E B IEEl 8 TR IR (R
note 6(b)). FE6(b)) °
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(BRHEEHIES  UAREZS)

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the sole
shareholder of the Company on 8 September 2007, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of enabling the Group to reward the
employees, the Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group. The Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of
such scheme and will expire on 7 September 2017.

Under the Scheme, the Board may at their discretion grant
options to:

(@) any employee (whether full-time or part-time,
including any executive Director but excluding any
non-executive Director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds
an equity interest (“Invested Entity”) (“Eligible
Employee”);

(b) any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h) any other Group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement and growth of the Group.

For the purposes of the Scheme, the options may be
granted to any company wholly-owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of
participants.

Qunxing Paper Holdings Company Limited B E& ¥ ZERER AT
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per
option. The maximum number of the Company’s shares
("Share(s)”) in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on the date of listing
(exclusive of shares issued upon the exercise of the over-
allotment option). The limit may be refreshed at any time
provided that the new limit must not be in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval of the
refreshed limit in general meeting. However, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of Shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of Shares
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive Directors representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of Shares in issue, and in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the shareholders of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the options to the tenth anniversary of the date
of grant, subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there
is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not
be less than the highest of (i) the average closing price of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

No option has been granted by the Company under the
Scheme since its date of adoption.

27.

BREEE(E)

SHEEIRNRLEREZAH R R 21H
A REBREBHERESRBARE 1 BITE
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i - RITEPMERERET A R AR REMRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 765 3 R FfY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIHZEEH + UAREZS])

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

28.

29.

(a)

(b)

On 5 November 2010, the Company announced
an open offer proposal to raise approximately
HK$349.01 million (equivalent to RMB300.07
million) before expenses, by the issuing of
528,797,150 new shares (“new shares”) at a price
of HK$0.66 (equivalent to approximately RMBO0.57)
each in the proportion of 1 offer share for every 2
shares held. The net proceeds are to be used for
the purposes of the general working capital of the
Group. Details of the open offer are set out in the
Company’s prospectus to shareholders dated 17
December 2010. The open offer is underwritten by
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, an independent
third party incorporated in the Hong Kong with
limited liability. On 10 January 2011, the Company
issued the new shares and received the net
proceeds.

On 14 January 2011, the Company entered into
the Subscription Agreement with Victory Asset
Management HK Limited (the “Subscriber”) to raise
HK$10,328,000 (equivalent to RMB8,880,000)
before expenses, by issuing of 206,560,000 ordinary
shares at the warrant subscription price of HK$0.05
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.04) per warrant.
The warrant will entitle the Subscriber to subscribe
206,560,000 ordinary shares at the warrant exercise
price of HK$2.95 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2.54) per ordinary shares for a period of 12
months commencing from the completion date
as defined in the Subscription Agreement, on 19
January 2011. The net proceeds will be used for
the purposes of the general working capital of the
Group. The Subscriber is an independent third party
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING COMPANY

At 31 December 2010,

the Directors consider the

immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Boom Instant Limited, which is incorporated

in the BVI.

This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIS EEH + UAREZS])
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

30.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed at least annually in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volumes, sales revenue
and the amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sales volumes, sales revenue and the
amount of operating costs.

Write-down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for
obsolescence of inventories. These estimates are
made with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write-down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories
decline below their estimated net realisable value.
Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in
this estimation.

30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H5 R 3R B =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BIZEEH - UAREZZ))

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

30.

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the relevant assets, after taking into account the
estimated residual value, if any. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets annually
in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Additional provision is made in the consolidated
financial statements to cover the expected outcome
of the ultimate tax determination to the extent that
outcomes are likely and reliable estimates can be
made. However, the final outcomes are subject to
uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed
provisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 S 2R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BHEEHIES  UAREZES)

31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments and
interpretations and one new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Revised IAS 24, Related party disclosures
BIETTRIRR S5 RIS 24 5% - BA@ T HEE

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
BB R 2ERIE 95k - BT A

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes
B EERIE 125 (BETAN) » FTiSH

Improvements to IFRSs 2010
2010 BRI 75 3 5 2 RIB =

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s or the Company’s results of
operations and financial position.

31.

BE-—ZT-—-ZTF+=-B=+—HIEEEHE
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BR] - REBRER - LTHRAMAEEARE
EER

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

BT 5 EMER
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1 January 2011
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1 January 2013
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—E-_F—H—H

1 July 2010
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFMBERE

As at or for the year ended 31 December

RTZB=t-RABEZALEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“ETRE g “ETN\E “ZENE —E-2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANEEFT NEEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT AEETT
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS AWK
Turnover 1 950,844 1,125,524 1,496,360 1,530,321 2,058,916
Cost of sales HERA (766,727) (842,055) (1,090,844) (1,105,517) (1,539,131)
Gross profit E | 184,117 283,469 405,516 424,804 519,785
Other revenue Hiplhss 726 121,952 41,503 4,371 2,212
Other net loss HiBRFE — (627) (2,441) (62) (189)
Selling expenses HERT (9,597) (9,459) (15,896) (19,233) (26,426)
Administrative expenses TS (11,929) (23,698) (32,001) (34,018) (39,409)
Profit from operations mEEF 163,317 371,637 396,681 375,862 455,973
Finance costs BERA (20,625) (21,065) (13,320) (4,168) =
Profit before taxation BRAL AR A 142,692 350,572 383,361 371,694 455,973
Income tax FEH (48,755) — — (47,607) (58,467)
Profit for the year EERF 93,937 350,572 383,361 324,087 397,506
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GRMBRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER ST 499,776 461,021 561,146 1,365,520 2,015,579
Construction in progress EEIRE 16,000 167,098 316,060 296,911 253,878
Lease prepayments MERNTE — 11,255 15,150 14,809 14,468
Prepayment for the acquisition of BERRE R ERAZE
plant and equipment — — 110,880 60,780 24,029
Prepayment for flood prevention expenses Byt E S B[ 7E = = = = 41,225
515,776 639,374 1,003,236 1,738,020 2,349,179
Current assets RBEE
Trading securities RHEF - - 64,753 - —
Inventories FE 50,989 35,487 43,622 37,334 48,962
Trade and other receivables BB S R E R 81,785 50,903 38,844 72,407 111,288
Amounts due from directors EUESFE 15 = = — =
Amounts due from related parties e EE A FUR 183 - — - -
Cash and cash equivalents BERE2ZEY 67,265 1,792,158 1,539,373 682,764 447,763
200,237 1,878,548 1,686,592 792,505 608,013
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank loans RITER 332,000 30,000 124,000 — =
Trade and other payables ENB AR REMENTUE 79,013 229,404 320,753 58,000 87,040
Amounts due to directors ERESZHE 194,491 = = = =
Current taxation ENEAfRIR 21,671 9,868 9,868 20,216 22,708
627,175 269,272 454,621 78,216 109,748
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFMBERE

As at or for the year ended 31 December

RYZA=T-RABEZALEFE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

“TERE “EEE “TE)N\E “TENE “E-3f

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NEETFT ARETFT ANEETTL NEETFT AREFT

Net current (liabilities)fassets rBAE) REFE (426938 1609216 1231911 0 714289 498,265

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRDER 88,338 2,248,650 2,235,207 2,452,309 2,847,444
Non-current liabilities FrBas

Bank loans ROER — 207,000 = = =

NET ASSETS EEFE 88,838 2,041,650 2,235,207 2,452,309 2,847,444
Capital and reserves BARGE

Share capital AR 102 101,359 100,258 100,258 102,427

Reserves B 88,736 1,940,291 2,134,949 2,352,051 2,745,017

TOTAL EQUITY ERmE 88,838 2,041,650 2,235,207 2,452,309 2,847,444

Earnings per share - Basic (RMB cents) FRAN — EXARESD) 13 4 37 31 38
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFMBERE

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
ETEMBLR

As at or for the year ended 31 December

RT=ZB=t-RREBEZALEE

Note 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

izt S NS I ZREN\E ZEENE ZB-%F
Profitability ratios BRENLE
Gross profit margin eSS 1 19.4% 25.2% 27.1% 27.8% 25.2%
Net profit margin = 2 9.9% 31.1% 25.6% 21.2% 19.3%
Return on assets BEM#E 3 13.1% 13.9% 14.3% 12.8% 13.4%
Return on equity e 4 105.7% 17.2% 17.2% 13.2% 14.0%
Liquidity ratios hEESLE
Current ratio X 5 03 7.0 37 10.1 5.5
Quick ratio REL X 6 0.2 6.8 36 9.7 5.1
Gearing ratio EEARNE 7 46.4% 9.4% 4.6% 0.0% 0.0%
Inventory turnover days FEEBAH 8 30 20 18 16 15
Debtors' turnover days YR TRERY 9 31 16 9 7 17
Creditors’ turnover days AN N EEEPR 10 31 35 37 20 3

Notes:

1.

Gross profit margin is calculated based on the gross profit divided
by turnover and multiplied by 100%.

Net profit margin is calculated based on the profit for the year
divided by turnover and multiplied by 100%.

Return on assets is calculated based on the profit for the year
divided by the total assets at the end of the year and multiplied
by 100%.

Return on equity is calculated based on the profit for the year
divided by capital and reserves at the end the year and multiplied
by 100%.

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets
divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the
total current assets and the inventories divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the year.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total bank borrowings
divided by total assets and multiplied 100%.

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the inventory at
the end of the year divided by the total purchases during the year
and multiplied by the number of days during the year.

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on trade receivables
at the end of the year divided by turnover during the year and
multiplied by the number of days during the year.

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on trade payables at
the end of the year divided by the total purchases during the year
and multiplied by the number of days during the year.
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